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NRL AT A GLANCE

FIRST LUBE REFINERY

BEFORE RE-VAMP

Design capacity 3,976,500 barrels per year of Crude Oil processing
Design capacity 533,400 barrels per year of Lube Base Oils

Date Commissioned June 1966

Project Cost Rs. 103.9 million

AFTER RE-VAMP

Design capacity 5,610,000 barrels per year of Crude Oil processing
Design capacity 568,860 barrels per year of Lube Base Qils

Date Commissioned September 2020

Project Cost of Revamping Rs. 1,562 million

FUEL REFINERY

BEFORE RE-VAMP

Design capacity 11,385,000 barrels per year of Crude Oil processing
Date Commissioned April 1977
Project Cost Rs. 607.5 million
AFTER FIRST RE-VAMP
Design capacity 16,500,000 barrels per year of Crude Oil processing
Date Commissioned February 1990
Project Cost of Revamping Rs. 125.0 million
AFTER SECOND RE-VAMP
Design capacity 17,490,000 barrels per year of Crude Oil processing
Date Commissioned March 2017
Project Cost of Revamping Rs. 548.0 million
HSD DESULPHURIZATION AND ASSOCIATED UNITS
Date Commissioned June 2017
Project Cost Rs. 26.82 billion
NAPHTHA BLOCK (ISOMERIZATION UNIT)
Date Commissioned October 2017
Project Cost Rs. 6.54 billion
BTX UNIT
Design capacity 180,000 barrels per year of BTX
Date Commissioned April 1979
Project Cost Rs. 66.7 million

SECOND LUBE REFINERY

BEFORE RE-VAMP

Design capacity 700,000 barrels per year of Lube Base Oils
Date Commissioned January 1985
Project Cost Rs. 2,082.4 million
AFTER RE-VAMP
Design capacity 805,000 barrels per year of Lube Base Oils
Date Commissioned June 2007
Project Cost of Revamping Rs. 585.0 million
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
June 1966 Rs. 20.0 million
June 2025 Rs. 50,316.4 million
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Our passion is to attain distinctive leadership amongst the corporate success
stories of tomorrow.

We at NRL recognize that realization of this passion needs superior professional
competencies, continuous value addition and improvising, development of
human capital and complete commitment to safety, occupational health and
environment.




MISSION

¢ To remain the premium and preferred supply source for various petroleum
products and petrochemicals.

Offer products that are not only viable in terms of desirability and price but
most importantly give true and lasting value to our customers.

Deliver strong returns on existing and projected investments of our
stakeholders by use of specialised and high quality corporate capabilities.

Business development by adoption of emerging technologies, growth in
professional competence, support to innovation, enrichment of human
resource and performance recognition.

Be aresponsible corporate citizen by serving the community through a variety
of socio-economic acts and maintaining a high level of safety, occupational
health and environmental care.




——— CORE VALUES

— Following concepts and ideas guide the Management and Staff of National Refinery Limited P
in conducting its business practices in most ethical ways:

!

1. Ethical Conduct and Integrity
We value lifestyle in our organization where ethics like truth, honesty, integrity and fair
play are basic ingredients while interacting within the organization or dealing with the =
iy -] -
. outside world.
i .

2. Teamwork and Responsibility
We share information and resources and step in to help out other team members.
Conflicts are worked out in spite of obstacles and difficulties. We accept responsibility
with “can do” attitude.
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. Customer satisfaction

We endeavor to provide quality products to our customers at competitive prices. We value
their satisfaction essential for continued growth of our business.

. Continuous improvement

We generate new ideas and creative approaches to upgrade and update our refinery
to best available technology and processes so that our products are at the level of
internationally accepted standards.

. Profitability

We believe in enhancing our profitability to the maximum so that Employees, Shareholders
and Government all benefit from it.

. Corporate Citizenship

As a good Corporate Citizen, we are more than willing and happy to meet our social
responsibilities towards the community around us. We are also committed to meet
requirements of health, safety and environment.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors
Laith G. Pharaon
Alternate Director: Sajid Nawaz

Wael G. Pharaon
Alternate Director: Babar Bashir Nawaz

Shuaib A. Malik - Chairman
Abdus Sattar

Shamim Ahmad Khan
Tariq Igbal Khan
Khondamir Nusratkhujaev

Chief Executive Officer
Asad Hasan

Chief Financial Officer
Nouman Ahmed Usmani

Company Secretary
Badruddin Khan

Audit Committee

Shamim Ahmad Khan Chairman
Abdus Sattar Member
Babar Bashir Nawaz Member

Alternate Director for Mr. Wael G. Pharaon

Muhammad Atta ur Rehman Malik Secretary
Human Resource and Remuneration (HR&R) Committee

Shamim Ahmad Khan Chairman
Shuaib A. Malik Member
Babar Bashir Nawaz Member

Alternate Director for Mr. Wael G. Pharaon

Asad Hasan Member
Nouman Ahmed Usmani Secretary
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Auditors

A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Legal Advisor
Ali Sibtain Fazli & Associates
Legal Advisors, Advocates & Solicitors

Bankers

The Bank of Punjab

MCB Bank Limited

Faysal Bank Limited
Meezan Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan
Allied Bank Limited
Habib Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

MCB Islamic Bank Limited

Registered Office

Dubai Islamic Bank

Bank AL-Habib Limited

Samba Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

United Bank Limited

Askari Bank Limited

Banklslami Pakistan

Industrial & Commercial Bank of China Limited

7-B, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi-74900

P.O. Box: 8228, Karachi-74900

UAN: +92-21-111-675-675

PABX:  +92-21-35064981-86
+92-21-35064977-79

Website: www.nrlpak.com

E-mail: info@nrlpak.com

Share Registrar

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S.,
Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi — 74400.

Tel: (Toll Free) 0800-23275
Fax: +92-21-34326053
Email: info@cdcsrsl.com

Website: www.cdcsrsl.com
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CORPORATE OBJECTIVES &
DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

National Refinery Limited is a petroleum refining and petrochemical complex engaged in
manufacturing and supplying a wide range of fuel products, lubes, BTX, asphalts and specialty
products for domestic consumption and export.

NRL objectives and development strategy are aimed at achieving sustainable productivity
and profitability and high standards of safety, occupational health and environmental care.
This entails human resource re-engineering & development, enhancing value addition,
implementing conservation measures and continuing growth through up-gradation of existing
as well as addition of new facilities. In the changing global environment, corporate objective
and development strategy have been defined to meet the challenges of 21 Century.

Corporate Objectives

» Ensure that business policies and targets are in conformity with the national goals.

» Contribute in meeting the country’s demand of petroleum and petrochemical products.
= Customer’s satisfaction by providing best value and quality products.

* Optimization of the value of barrel of crude oil and cost reduction through conservation
measures.

* Achieving and maintaining a high standard of Occupational Health, Safety and
Environmental care.

* Ensure reasonable return on the shareholders’ existing and projected investments.

* Maintain modern management systems conforming to international standards needed for

an efficient organization.

Development Strategy

» Contribute in national efforts towards attaining sustainable self-efficiency in petroleum
products.

» Human resource development by upgrading training facilities and exposure to modern
technologies/management techniques.

= Balancing and Modernization for energy conservation and enhanced yield of value added
products as well as revamping for environment friendly products.

» Expansion of refining capacity by de-bottlenecking and adding new facilities.
» Acquire newer generation technologies for the efficient refinery operations as well as for
attaining highest standards of Occupational Health, Safety and Environmental care.

* Acquiring self-sufficiency in re-engineering, design and fabrication of equipments.
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Other Engagements

Chairman & Director
¢ Attock Petroleum Limited
¢ The Attock Oil Company Limited

Mr. Laith G. Pharaon

(Non-Executive Director)

A businessman and an international investor who has financial and
trading interests in Pakistan and other parts of the world in various
sectors like petroleum, power generation, chemical, real estate and
cement etc. Mr. Laith holds a graduate degree from the University
of Southern California. He is a Director on the Board of various
companies of The Attock Group.

Director
¢ Pakistan Oilfields Limited
e Attock Refinery Limited
¢ Attock Cement Pakistan Limited
¢ Attock Gen Limited
e Attock Energy (Pvt.) Limited

———

e —

Other Engagements

Director
¢ The Attock Oil Company Limited
¢ Attock Cement Pakistan Limited
e Attock Refinery Limited
¢ Pakistan Qilfields Limited
¢ Attock Petroleum Limited
¢ Attock Gen Limited

Mr. Wael G. Pharaon

(Non-Executive Director)

A businessman and an international investor who has financial and
trading interests in Pakistan and other parts of the world in various
sectors like petroleum, power generation, chemical, real estate and
cement etc. Mr. Wael holds a graduate degree. He is a Director on
the Board of various companies of The Attock Group.

¢ Angoori Heights Development (Pvt.) Limited
e Margalla Farm Houses Development (Pvt.) Limited
¢ Rawal Lodges Development (Pvt.) Limited

14
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Mr. Shuaib A. Malik
Chairman
(Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Shuaib A. Malik has been associated with Attock Group of
Companies, one of the largest conglomerates in the Country having
diversified interests in Oil & Gas, Power Generation, Cement,
Information Technology, Renewable Energy, Medical Services and
Real Estate Development etc., for more than four decades. He
served in different Companies in the Group at various times with the
responsibility to supervise and oversee the operations and affairs of
these Companies.

He became the youngest Chief Executive of the Group Holding
Company, “The Attock Oil Company Limited” on September 01, 1995.

With his hard work, dedication, business acumen and professional abilities, he eventually rose to the highest
management position in the Group and was appointed as Group Chief Executive of “Attock Group of Companies”

in July 2006.

He has exhaustive experience and in depth knowledge related to various aspects of upstream, midstream and
downstream petroleum business and it was due to his visionary leadership that the Attock Group was able to
grow leaps and bounds and diversify into various trades and industries.

In recognition of his outstanding and visionary leadership, Mr. Shuaib A. Malik has been conferred upon the
Sitara e Imtiaz by the Government of Pakistan.

Other Engagements

Chairman, Chief Executive & Director

¢ Pakistan Qilfields Limited

Chairman & Director
e Attock Refinery Limited

¢ Attock Cement Pakistan Limited
e Attock Hospital (Pvt.) Limited

Chief Executive & Director
¢ Attock Petroleum Limited
¢ The Attock Oil Company Limited
e Attock Information Technology Services (Pvt.) Limited
¢ Angoori Heights Development (Pvt.) Limited

e Attock Leisure & Management Associates (Pvt.) Limited

e Falcon Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited
e Attock Energy (Pvt.) Limited

Director
¢ Attock Gen Limited
e Rawal Lodges Development (Pvt.) Limited
* Margalla Farm Houses Development (Pvt.) Limited

Resident Representative
® Pharaon Investment Group Limited Holding SAL

Group Chief Executive

National Refinery Limited - Annual Report 2025
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Other Engagements

Director
¢ Attock Refinery Limited
¢ Pakistan Qilfields Limited
¢ Attock Cement Pakistan Limited
¢ |Gl Holdings Limited
¢ |Gl Life Insurance Limited

Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan
(Independent Director)

After joining Civil Service of Pakistan, Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan
served in senior positions in the Government, particularly in the
Ministry of Finance and retired as Secretary, Ministry of Commerce.
For ten years, he worked in Corporate Law Authority, regulatory
body for the corporate sector as Member and later as Chairman. He
restructured it as Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) and became its first Chairman. Mr. Khan has also undertaken
a number of consultancy assignments for Asian Development Bank,
World Bank and DFID. He is also member of Board of Governors of
SDPI.

¢ |Gl General Insurance Limited (unlisted)
¢ Packages Foundation
e Sustainable Development Policy Institute (SDPI)

——

Mr. Abdus Sattar

(Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Abdus Sattar has over 35 years of Financial Management experience
at key positions of responsibility in various Government organizations /
ministries, commercial organizations with the main objective of controlling
costs of various commodities, to watch consumer interest, minimize
government subsidies, improve government revenues, eliminate wasteful
expenses / leakages and fixation of gas and POL prices. After serving
as Financial Advisor to Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Resources,
Government of Pakistan, he also remained Financial Advisor for Mari Gas
Company Limited for around 8 years including 6 years as its Director on the
Board. While working as Financial Advisor in Ministry of Petroleum he also
served as Director on a number of boards like OGDCL, PPL, SNGPL, SSGCL,
PSO, PARCO, ARL, POL, NRL, PMDC etc. as a nominee of Government

of Pakistan for about seven years. He is a fellow member of Institute of Cost and Management Accountant of
Pakistan (ICMAP) and was also nominated as council member of ICMAP for the three years (Jan 2000 to Dec
2002) by the Government of Pakistan. He has attended many advance financial management courses, programs
and trainings in institutions of international repute in Pakistan and abroad. Presently, he is on the Board of all the
Listed Companies of The Attock Group.

Other Engagements

Director
e Attock Refinery Limited
¢ Attock Petroleum Limited

¢ Pakistan Qilfields Limited
¢ Attock Cement Pakistan Limited

16
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

Other Engagements

Director & Managing Director
e Pakistan Oilfields Limited

Mr. Sajid Nawaz
Alternate Director for Mr. Laith G. Pharaon
(Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Sajid Nawaz has over 30 years of work experience in service with
Government of Pakistan at various management posts both within
country and abroad. Due to the nature of posts and assignments
he carries considerable experience of working in different
environments. He has attended various management courses
abroad and in Pakistan, including one month course on International
Petroleum Management at Canadian Petroleum Institute, Canada.
He is presently holding position of Managing Director of Pakistan
Oilfields Limited (POL) and has almost 20 years of work experience
with the Company in Senior Management positions. He has also
served as Director on Boards of Attock Petroleum Limited, Attock
Refinery Limited and Attock Cement Pakistan Limited.

IR M /

e —

Other Engagements

Manager

Mr. Khondamir Nusratkhujaev
(Independent Director)

Mr. Khondamir Nusratkhujaev has more than 20 years of diversified
working experience in the areas of Auditing, Internal Controls and
Financial Controls (COSO), Budgeting and Islamic Banking. He is a
Chartered Certified Accountant, UK and also holds Master’s degree
in Business Administration. Besides he is also a Certified Islamic
Public Accountant. Mr. Nusratkhujaev has been associated with top
international accounting firms including Deloitte Russia, Ernst & Young
Kazakhstan & PWC Uzbekistan in the areas of Auditing and Accounting
Advisory. Currently he is associated with Islamic Development Bank,
Jeddah as Manager accounting and reporting division and manages
full financial and management reporting cycle. He is also author of
many international publications on Islamic Finance and Banking.

e Accounting and Reporting at Islamic Development Bank

Board Member

® Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions (AAOIFI)
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz

e N\ Alternate for Mr. Wael G. Pharaon
(Non-Executive Director)

He has an illustrious career span of over 40 years with the Attock
Group of Companies. During this period he has held various
positions in Finance, Marketing, Personnel & General Management,
before being appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of Attock
Cement Pakistan Limited in 2002. He holds a postgraduate degree
in Business Administration from the Quaid-e-Azam University,
Islamabad. Being a seasoned professional, he has attended various
courses, workshops and seminars in Pakistan and abroad on the
business management and carries enormous knowledge of the

cement industry in Pakistan. Currently, he is the Vice Chairman of
T — All Pakistan Cement Manufacturers Association (APCMA).

Other Engagements

Chief Executive Director
¢ Attock Cement Pakistan Limited ¢ Attock Petroleum Limited
¢ Rawal Lodges Development (Pvt.) Limited * Angoori Heights Development (Pvt.) Limited
* Margalla Farm Houses Development (Pvt.) Limited
Alternate Director ¢ Attock Leisure & Management Associates
¢ Pakistan Oilfields Limited (Pvt.) Limited

¢ Attock Refinery Limited
¢ Attock Cement Pakistan Limited

Mr. Tariq Igbal Khan

(Independent Director)

(- )

Mr. Tariq Igbal Khan is a fellow member of Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan, with diversified experience of more than 40
years. He was pivotal in founding Islamabad Stock Exchange where he
subsequently served as President as well. He has also served as the
Member Tax Policy & Co-ordination in the Central Board of Revenue,
followed by being appointed as Commissioner SECP, where he was
instrumental in restructuring the SECP. He also held the position of
Chairman of Audit Oversight Board and also held charge of SECP
(acting) Chairman for a brief period. He served on prominent national
bj level committees like Committee for formulation of Takeover law.

CLA Committee for review of Securities & Exchange Ordinance 1969,

Committee for formulation of CDC law & regulations and Prime
Minister’s Committee for Revival of Stock Market. He served as the Chairman and MD of NIT for more than 8 years,
which played the role of a catalyst in establishing, strengthening and stabilizing the capital markets. Additionally,
during this period, he held the charge of Chairman & MD of ICP, for almost 5 years. He has served on Boards of the
top companies like CDC, Faysal Bank Limited, Bank Al-Habib Limited, GSK, ICl, Siemens and Packages etc. He has
remained Chairman of Attock Refinery Limited, Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited, K.P. Energy Board and KPOGCL.

Other Engagements

Director
o Attock Refinery Limited ¢ Interloop Limited * Packages Converters Limited
* Packages Limited ¢ Sui Nothern gas Pipelines Limited e Islamic International Medical Trust
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

Mr. Asad Hasan
Chief Executive Officer
(Executive Director)

Mr. Asad Hasan is an experienced leader and accomplished engineer,
recognized for his strategic vision and strong managerial expertise in
the Qil and Gas industry. He holds a Master of Science in Engineering
from The University of Texas, Austin, USA, and a Bachelor of
Mechanical Engineering from N.E.D. University, Pakistan.

With over two decades of experience, Mr. Asad has consistently
delivered results by navigating complex organizational challenges and
%/ leading large-scale projects to successful completion. His strength

lies in turning strategic goals into actionable outcomes, ensuring
alignment and execution across all levels. He commands an innate ability to balance technical expertise with big-
picture thinking, ensuring both immediate and long-term strategic goals are addressed.

Before his role at National Refinery Limited, Mr. Asad was Deputy Managing Director responsible for Operations
& Engineering and Major Capital Projects at Pakistan Refinery Limited. During his tenure, he drove organizational
improvements and operational excellence while overseeing critical functions. His earlier experience includes
serving at Chevron, North America Upstream, California, USA, and Pakistan Petroleum Limited.

Mr. Asad also contributed to governance and strategic oversight as a Non-Executive Director on the Board of
Pak-Grease Manufacturing Company (Pvt.) Limited, an associated company of PRL and PSO.
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LEADERSHIP TEAM

Nouman Ahmed Usmani
(Chief Financial Officer)

Muhammad Fahim Siddiqui

(Coordinator Maintenance & Projects)

Amir Ahmed Khan

Rana Waqar Haider | (GM Commercial, Strategy
(GM Administration) & Innovation)

Muhammad Irfan
(GM Operations)

4 )

\_ J

a Badruddin Khan
Ali Raza Bodla

(GM Technical)

Mona Faisal
(Advisor People & Culture)

Asad Hasan
(Chief Executive Officer)

(Company Secretary)

Nisar Ahmed Khan

(Coordinator Operations)

Shahid Waheed Khwaja

(Advisor to the Chairman)
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CHAIRMAN'’S REVIEW

( )

| am pleased to present the annual review of your Company for the year ended June 30, 2025.

The fiscal year 2025 brought significant challenges for the global economy, particularly in
the oil and energy sector. Refining margins remained volatile due to fluctuating crude oil
prices and geopolitical tensions. Domestically, the Company faced mounting cost pressures
from rising operational expenses and exchange rate volatility. Nevertheless, management’s
strategic emphasis on optimizing the premium product slate aimed at increasing HSD vyield
while simultaneously catering to re-aligned Lube Base market share by rationalizing the
share of lighter crude in the feedstock mix and diversifying crude sourcing contributed to
operational stability.

The Company focused on enhancing operational efficiency and ensuring plant availability and
reliability by strengthening maintenance systems. The Company also streamlined its supply
chain through continuing market engagement, which not only helped in sustainable product
upliftment of conventional petroleum products, but also improved offtake of Bitumen in
sluggish domestic market environment. The Company also invested in workforce development
through targeted training initiatives. These steps are aligned with our long-term vision of
sustainable growth.

Financial Performance

The company’s financial performance in FY 2025 resulted in a net loss after tax of Rs. 14.87
billion, over the previous year’s loss of Rs. 15.79 billion. This was mainly attributed to volatile
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product margins, reduced product off-take forcing the Company to operate at reduced
throughput and declining price trend translating into significant inventory losses. Domestic
demand of Furnace Oil almost vanished compelling the company to export Furnace Qil at
significantly lower price. However, during the year, management adopted a strategic shift by
gradually increasing the lighter crudes in feedstock mix, which improved the yield of premium
products. This shift, coupled with higher sales of High-Speed Diesel (HSD), launch of premium-
grade MS 95 RON gasoline and significant increase in sales of Lube Base oils, substantially
strengthened revenue streams. Consequently, there is improvement in gross refinery margins
and reduction in Gross loss for the year as compared to last year.

Above helped the company to achieve quarter-to-quarter improvement, ultimately leading to
operating-level profit in the fourth quarter, as compared to losses in the first three quarters.

Corporate Governance and Oversight

The Board of Directors has been at the forefront of guiding the company through these
tumultuous times, ensuring that the company adheres to high standards of corporate
governance. We have consistently complied with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations 2019, ensuring transparency and accountability in all our operations.
The Board has maintained a strategic focus on risk management and performance optimization,
addressing critical challenges through a robust internal control system.

The Audit Committee and the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee have played
pivotal roles in overseeing the company’s financial health and human resource development.
We have remained focused on enhancing both our operational efficiency and employee
engagement. The continued professional development of our workforce has been a
cornerstone in ensuring sustainable growth and operational success.

Leadership Transition

This year, the company saw a leadership change with the appointment of Mr. Asad Hasan
as the new Chief Executive Officer, effective December 2, 2024. Mr. Hasan brings with him a
wealth of experience and has contributed to streamline the company’s strategic direction. On
behalf of the Board, | would like to express our appreciation to Mr. Shahid Waheed Khwaja,
who served as CEO during a critical and short period in the start of the financial year, ensuring
continuity and stability within the company.

Industry Challenges

Pakistan’s oil refining sector continues to operate under immense pressure due to both
global trends and domestic market challenges. Weak domestic demand particularly the near
elimination of furnace oil local consumption due to imposition of petroleum levy post year
end poses potential disruption in traditional product flows and undermines the future refinery
economics.

The industry also faces high tax rates, delays in the implementation of key policies and an
increasing burden of duties and levies, with the latest one arising from exemption of key
petroleum products under the Sales Tax law increasing both the operational and upgrade
projects cost significantly. Although the refinery policy 2023 presents a potential catalyst for
sectoral revival, its success will depend on timely execution, resolution of critical issues being
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faced by refineries and restoration of investor confidence. Addressing these structural and
fiscal challenges is essential to safeguard the long-term viability and competitiveness of the
domestic refining landscape.

Plan Forward

As we look ahead, the focus will remain on maintaining a stable and adaptive operation in
the face of ongoing economic and geopolitical volatility. The Company continues to closely
monitor global crude oil price trends, evolving regulatory frameworks, and the unregulated
cross-border movement of petroleum products, all of which have implications for long-term
planning.

The Company remains committed to its strategic roadmap for sustained profitability, which
includes diversifying product offerings, optimizing refinery performance, and expanding its
market footprint. A strong emphasis has been placed on Health, Safety, and Environment
(HSE), with enhanced protocols, training, and monitoring to promote a safe, compliant, and
sustainable operational environment. In line with this strategy, the Company has focused on
enhancing plant reliability and has increased sales of HSD and Mogas, resulting in higher
throughput. It has also successfully commenced production of MS 95 RON and achieved a
substantial increase in the sale of Lube Base Oil (LBO). Furthermore, the Company is actively
exploring opportunities in the waxes market. Close to year-end, the company received three
purchase orders from foreign customers for Wax export, whereby supply to one of these
customers has been made immediately post year-end. The Company is also reviewing the
feasibility of undertaking a comprehensive overhaul of BTX plantin FY 2026. Planned upgrades
of refinery facilities and the introduction of new product variants are expected to further
support profitability in the coming years.

With the continued support of our shareholders, employees, and partners, we are confident
in our ability to navigate challenges and deliver sustainable long-term value.

On behalf of the Board, | extend my sincere appreciation to the management team, employees,
shareholders, customers, and all other stakeholders for their continued support and trust in
the company. | look forward to the following year to be the year of progress and pray Almighty
for the success for National Refinery Limited.

Shuaib A. Malik
Chairman

Rawalpindi
August 11, 2025
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DIRECTORS’' REPORT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to present the 62" Annual Report of
National Refinery Limited, encompassing the audited financial statements and the auditors’
report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025.

INTERNATIONAL MARGINS

Global refining margins have experienced significant volatility during the year, largely driven
by fluctuating crude oil prices, geopolitical tensions, and evolving global supply-demand
dynamics. The shrinking gap between the cost of crude and the selling prices of refined
products has posed challenges for refineries worldwide. Although refined product prices such
as gasoline, diesel, and jet fuel increased at various points in the year, they often failed to
keep pace with the rise in crude oil prices, compressing gross refining margins.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Thefinancial year 2025 proved to be a challenging period for the Company, marked by sustained
pressure on refining margins and an increasingly complex operating environment. The year
commenced with weak product margins, which remained volatile throughout the year due
to persistent demand supply imbalances and reducing product premiums. These challenges
were further compounded by elevated operational costs, particularly from increased utility
tariffs, which adversely affected overall results.

Amid these challenges, the company made significant strides in improving the sales of
premium products. Notably, High-Speed Diesel (HSD) sales rose by 14%, while Mogas sales
saw an increase of 8% compared to the previous year. However, the local demand for Furnace
QOil (FO) experienced a sharp decline of 46%, dropping from 173,790 MT last year to 93,792 MT.
In response, the Company strategically pivoted towards exports, increasing Furnace Qil export
volumes to 180,726 MT, compared to 22,882 MT in the previous year. While this measure
helped mitigate the decline in local sales, the export realizations remained below domestic
price levels, which constrained the overall revenue contribution from this product stream.

The macroeconomic environment showed signs of improvement. Political stability
strengthened, headline inflation declined to 12.0% in June 2025 from a peak of 28.3% in May
2023, and the State Bank of Pakistan reduced the policy rate by a cumulative 950 basis points,
bringing it down to 11.0% by June 2025. These developments helped ease financial pressures,
improve investor sentiment, and reduce the cost of financing for businesses.

During the year, Company implemented an operational strategy focused on increasing
the yield of positive margin products and at the same time reduce percentage of negative
margin products. This involved a gradual shift towards a lighter crude slate to maximize diesel
production while simultaneously reducing furnace oil yields.

Additionally, sales of Lube Base Oil recorded a notable 28% year-on-year increase, contributing
positively to overall margins and partially offsetting the Company’s financial loss. Aiming to
diversify its high-margin product portfolio, the Company commenced production of Mogas
95 RON, in line with growing market demand for higher-quality fuel options. The refinery
operated at 56% throughput during the year, compared to 52% in the corresponding period
last year, reflecting improved operational stability despite a challenging market environment.
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The company has also diversified its crude procurement sources to capitalize on price
differentials between different grades of crude, while also implementing measures to reduce
internal refinery fuel consumption. These strategies are aimed at increasing profitability in
the long term.

Despite these efforts, the Company continued to face external pressures, including the adverse
impact of smuggling and excessive imports, which dampened overall product demand.
Nevertheless, the Company remained focused on enhancing operational efficiency through
key initiatives aimed at improving plant reliability and ensuring strict compliance with Health,
Safety, and Environmental (HSE) standards to support sustainable throughput.

Concurrently, the Company has taken steps to deepen customer engagement, enhance product
quality, and diversify its product portfolio. Notably, the marketing of Wax was introduced to
capitalize on emerging opportunities in both domestic and export markets. It’s a new offering
by the company and the initial engagement with the local and global market has indicated
great demand and yielded in both local and multiple export orders in a short span of time.

These strategic and operational efforts are reflected in the quarter-wise improvement in the
Company’s operating financial performance, as shown in the graph below:
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With all these operational alignments and efforts to mitigate external challenges, the company
managed to curtail its net loss after tax for the year to Rs. 14.87 billion, whereas previous
year’s loss was Rs. 15.79 billion.

Company’s last six years profit / (loss) position is as follows:
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LOSS / EARNINGS PER SHARE

Loss per share is Rs. 185.91 as compared to loss per share of Rs. 197.46 per share in last year.

(LOSS) / EARNINGS PER SHARE - (Rs in billion)
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DIVIDEND

Considering the overall loss position, the Board of Directors decided not to consider any
dividend for the current year.

COMPANY BUSINESS

The Company is engaged in the business of Crude Oil Refining with three refineries
commissioned in the year 1966, 1977 and 1985. Last upgradation includes Diesel Hydro
Desulphurization and Isomerization units commissioned during the year 2017 and 2018
in order to produce environment friendly low Sulphur HSD ranging from Euro Il to Euro V
standard and to convert Naphtha into Motor Gasoline respectively. Further, through revamp
of fuel and lube — | refinery, the Company has increased its crude oil processing capacity from
62,050 barrels per day to 70,000 barrels per day.

The Company was privatized in the year 2005, whereby 51% shares of the Company are held
by Attock Group.

The Company’s product range includes High-Speed Diesel, Naphtha, Motor Gasoline, Liquefied
Petroleum Gas, Jet Fuels, multiple grades of Lube Base Oils, Extract Oils, Bitumen, Furnace
oil, Waxes and Rubber Process Oil. These products are marketed locally except for Naphtha,
which has no local market and thus is exported. Some quantities of Lube Base Oils, Bitumen
and Furnace Qil are also exported as per the requirement.

PRICING FORMULA

In the financial year 2012-13, price of HSD was de-regulated and linked with PSO import
price. However, effective September 1%, 2020, the Government introduced fortnightly pricing
mechanism whereby prices of HSD, MS and Jet Fuels are now based on Arab Gulf daily FOB
average for the number of days in the pricing period to be taken as base commodity price,
instead of PSO’s actual price for the month. However, incidentals including duties are included
in the price based on PSQ’s actual cost for the fortnight.

Effective January 1%, 2021, NRL is entitled for HSD Euro-V price based on Import Parity Price
and PSO’s import incidentals due to its capability of producing the same.
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In line with the revised Brownfield Refining Policy 2023, there is no restriction on the
distribution of company’s profit, as the updated policy supersedes all previous refinery policy
frameworks.

SUSTAINABILITY

Following are the key sustainability risks & uncertainties together with measures to manage
or mitigate the same:

RISK & UNCERTAINITIES

The volatility of crude oil and refined product prices in the international market often
results in compressed margins. In response, the Company regularly reviews and adjusts
its production and sales schedules to mitigate potential losses and optimize overall
performance. As part of this strategy, the Company continues to explore a variety of
crude oil sourcing options, enabling greater operational flexibility and improved yield
of high-value products under changing market conditions.

The negative outlook and downgraded credit ratings of the country and top-tier banks
by international credit rating agencies emerged as a significant risk in the last two
years, which disrupted the supply chain, affecting not only the company but also the
oil industry in particular, and import-dependent businesses across the country.

The company frequently incurs exchange losses due to the devaluation of the Pakistani
Rupee, particularly when making payments for crude oil procurement in foreign
currencies. To mitigate the impact of these exchange losses, the government has
implemented measures, including incorporating the exchange rate fluctuations into
pricing, which helps cover the risk to some extent.

The global shift towards Electric Vehicles and the reduced reliance on fossil fuels are
expected to impact the margins of finished petroleum products in the medium to long
term. Additionally, the significant decline in Furnace Oil demand for power generation
coupled with imposition of petroleum and climate support levies in the Finance Act
2025 has posed a major challenge for the company. Therefore, the company is left with
no option but to export loss making Furnace Qil at a further reduced price.

Changes in the regulatory environment by imposing duties / levies and/or taxes could
affect the demand of locally produced products.

High taxation on the company’s profits, imposition of super tax as well as higher
Turnover tax and export taxation also affect the company’s performance. Any adverse
changes in the taxation measures would further deteriorate company’s overall financial
results.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

A. EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT

The overall business sentiment in the country is improving, supported by a significant
decline in inflation and a corresponding reduction in State Bank’s Policy rates, which is
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gradually translating into lower mark-up rates. However, challenges in macroeconomic
environment persist, which include rising external vulnerabilities particularly due to
geopolitical un-rest in the Middle East, a significant increase in operating costs and
changes in the taxation regime could negatively affect the Company’s performance.

The Company’s management believes that several structural bottlenecks continue to
constrain the profitability of refinery operations. Key challenges include thin product
margins, rising utility costs, volatility in freight rates and LC confirmation charges,
custom duty reimbursement and foreign exchange losses related to crude oil imports.
Collectively, these factors place pressure on the Company’s cash flows, increase
working capital financing requirements, and ultimately affect overall performance and
profitability.

Under the Pakistan Qil Refinery Policy for Upgrade of Brownfield Refineries 2023, as
amended in February 2024 (the Policy), the Company completed all the formalities and
forwarded the mutually agreed duly initialed upgrade agreement to OGRA in March 2024
well within the stipulated timelines. However, the establishment of the escrow account
required under the Policy remains pending due to delays in execution of the agreement
from the Government side.

Under the Policy, 2.5% custom duty on High-Speed Diesel and 10% duty on Motor
Gasoline (which is already a part of pricing) have been approved as incremental incentive
for upgrades. The incremental amount is required to be deposited in an OGRA controlled
joint Escrow Account, to be utilized by refineries for upgradation upto 27.5% of project
cost. The incremental incentives are subject to legally binding agreement with OGRA,
wherein the upgrade is to be completed in six years. Additionally, the Policy addresses the
partial recovery of custom duty paid on crude oil import under the current mechanism,
and allows any custom duty paid on crude oil import to be reimbursed to refineries
through Inland Freight Equalization Margin (IFEM).

However, under the Finance Act 2024, the Government changed the status of some
petroleum products (i.e., Motor Gasoline, HSD, Kerosene and LDO) from taxable supplies
(with zero rating) to ‘exempt’ under the Sales Tax Act, 1990. This resulted in loss of around
70% of company’s input sales tax claims thereby increasing Company’s operating cost as
well as overall cost of Company’s future upgrade projects. With a year-long industry’s
efforts, the Government has allowed its reimbursement through IFEM as a temporary
measure, which is staggered over the next 12 months. As the Finance Act 2025 is also
following the status quo, the Company along with other refineries is strongly pursuing the
issue with the concerned authorities for its permanent resolution, due to its adverse and
far-reaching implications.

Company’s management firmly believes that by addressing brownfield refineries’ concerns
and challenges, this policy could play a pivotal role in promoting sector development and
stability.

Company’s management is addressing the challenging conditions being faced with utmost
care and vigilance. Despite the complexities, the management is putting all out efforts to
ensure efficient operations of the refinery. This careful approach is aimed at mitigating
risks and optimizing performance.
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B. COMPANY’S PLANS AND INITIATIVES
Aiming to drive financial improvement and long-term sustainability, the Company’s
leadership is focusing on targeted initiatives that include:

e Focusing on HSE and enhancing plant reliability and availability to sustainably
maintain higher throughput, ensuring continuous quality supplies, improved
customer satisfaction, retention, and achievement of economies of scale.

e Optimizing crude mix by increasing the proportion of lighter crudes, thereby
improving theyield of value-added High Speed Diesel (HSD) and reducing production
of loss-making Furnace Qil.

* Increasing production of Premium Motor Gasoline to capitalize on its domestic
demand and minimize exports of lower-value Naphtha.

¢ Introducing 95-RON Motor Gasoline to cater to niche market demand and enhance
product portfolio value.

e Scaling up production and ensuring supply of Lube Base Oil to increase the market
share in this segment.

e Expandinginto Wax Markets, toincrease Gross Refining Margins (GRM) contribution.
FUTURE PROIJECTS

Following are the company’s future projects aiming to improve Company’s products
quality, enhance value added products and maintain Company’s operational capabilities
for smooth refinery operations:

A. Upgrade Projects
Refinery’s upgrade projects involve huge capital investment, however under the
brownfield refining policy whereby the Government has offered certain incentives,
your company plans the following upgradation projects:

o Hydrocracker / Bottom of Barrel upgrade
This upgradation aims to partially reduce the production of Furnace oil and convert
it into value added products.

o CCR (Continuous Catalyst Regeneration) Platforming Unit
This unit aims to increase the Gasoline production and to meet country’s Gasoline
Euro-V specifications. The Company is considering CCR (Continuous Catalyst
Regeneration) Platforming unit along with other associated units.

To ensure alignment with evolving market demands, NRL has initiated a detailed
feasibility study to be conducted by M/s Wood, a globally recognized engineering
consultancy. This study will assess and optimize our currently planned projects,
addressing potential gaps while enhancing overall project value. Additionally, the scope
allows for the potential integration of supplementary units, if deemed necessary for
improved operational or economic outcomes. It is expected that their scope would be
finalized by October 31, 2025 and studies will be completed by third quarter of FY26.
Based on the report the company would finalize the configuration of upgradation
projects.
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B. Other Improvement Projects

o Turnaround of Lube-I Refinery
The Company plans to undertake the scheduled turnaround of its Lube-I Refinery
in the second quarter of FY26 as a fundamental maintenance activity to ensure
smooth refinery operations. This turnaround is expected to support sustained
plant performance at optimal levels and reduce the need for frequent maintenance
interventions.

o BTX (Benzene, Toluene & Xylene) - Plant
The Company’s BTX (petrochemical) plant was commissioned in 1979, with a design
capacity of approximately 180,000 barrels per annum for extracting aromatics like
benzene, toluene, and xylene, using reformate feedstock and solvent extraction
technology. However, the plant is not in commercial use for quite some time. The
Company is currently reviewing the feasibility of undertaking a comprehensive
overhaul of the plant during the year.

o Fixed Bed Reformer Catalyst Replacement
In FY26, the Company plans to replace the catalyst in its existing Fixed Bed
Reformer with an upgraded version. This enhancement is expected to improve
product quality while marginally increasing gasoline production.

o Motor Spirit Sulfur Reduction Project
A study has been commissioned to UOP (Universal Qil Products), the existing
naphtha block licensor, to explore further reductions in medium naphtha sulfur
content. Successful implementation of this initiative will enable further increase
in production of low-sulfur motor spirit.

IV. RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

We are committed to fostering and maintaining strong relationships with our suppliers,
customers, and all business partners involved in the supply chain.

PEOPLE AND CULTURE: DRIVING TRANSFORMATION THROUGH PEOPLE

This year marked a significant step forward in the ongoing evolution of our Human Resources
function. As part of a broader organizational transformation, we undertook several strategic
initiatives to strengthen the Human Resources function and reposition it as a driver of culture,
engagement, and capability development.

By repositioning the department as People & Culture, we underscored our commitment to
placing employees at the center of our transformation journey - enhancing culture, deepening
engagement, and strengthening capabilities across the organization. This change reflects our
commitment to placing employees at the heart of our organizational strategy and recognizing
that a strong Employee Value Proposition (EVP) is central to our long-term success.

We firmly believe that our people are the catalyst for change. In a time of economic and
operational challenges, it is their commitment, resilience, and ingenuity that will enable us
to navigate the path forward. Our renewed focus is on enhancing the employee experience
beginning at onboarding and continuing throughout the association. We organized several
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community-building events and interdepartmental activities aimed at strengthening
interpersonal connections, collaboration, and cross-functional camaraderie. By embedding
the HR Business Partner model to deepen our employee connection, focusing on automation
of HR processes and fostering belonging and teamwork through events that bring employees
together in meaningful ways we strongly believe we will be creating a future ready workforce.

CSR: CREATING IMPACT THROUGH SERVICE — KHIDMAT KA SAFAR

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) for us goes beyond traditional philanthropy—it is about
building empathy, community, and shared purpose within our organization.

We launched “Khidmat Ka Safar”, a structured CSR platform designed to engage employees
in socially meaningful activities that foster a sense of purpose and unity. By encouraging
employees to contribute their time and efforts, we aim to develop a culture of empathy,
compassion, and service to the society at large. We conducted a blood donation drive in
partnership with a local blood bank and have lined up visits to elderly care homes, orphanages,
and special needs schools to bring joy and attention to underserved communities.

We are also working on a program to involve our engineers as mentors, offering career guidance
to underprivileged students who could benefit from professional insight and encouragement.
These efforts will contribute to society but will also cultivate teamwork, humility, and a sense
of shared responsibility among our employees.

DIVERSITY, EQUITY & INCLUSION (DEI): BUILDING AN INCLUSIVE CULTURE

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion are not standalone initiatives—they are embedded in the way
we work, think, and grow as an organization.

We recognize that diversity of thought, background, and experience is critical for innovation
and sustainable success. This year, we reaffirmed our commitment to DEI by bringing structural
and cultural changes that support a more inclusive workplace.

One of our key focus areas is inclusion of people with special needs, guided by the principles
of human dignity, equal opportunity, and workplace accessibility. We initiated enhancements
to our office infrastructure to make it more accessible to individuals with special abilities,
including improvements in mobility access and workspaces designed to accommodate a
range of needs.

Moving forward, we plan to continue building an environment where everyone feels seen,
valued, and empowered to contribute.

LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT: INVESTING IN GROWTH

Our Human Resource Development (HRD) initiatives this year have been geared towards
building a learning culture and equipping employees with the skills needed for the future.

We further strengthened our onboarding and orientation framework to ensure that new
employee’s transition smoothly into our organization and culture. We provided access to
industry thought leaders and mentors through curated leadership talks and knowledge-
sharing sessions. We also rolled out an online learning platform that offer flexible, self-paced
upskilling opportunities and provide training programs aligned with business needs, focusing
on leadership, technical, and soft skills.
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At NRL, we view capability building as a cornerstone of sustainable performance. During
FY 2024-25, we delivered over 4,000 training man-hours, reflecting our commitment to
continuous learning and professional development across all levels of the organization.

Our training initiatives spanned a wide range of areas, such as Health, Safety, and Environment
(HSE), Technical skill enhancement for engineers and plant operators, Leadership development
programs to build future-ready leaders and Contractor safety compliance to ensure alignment
with our HSE standards.

To broaden the impact of our learning programs, we partnered with respected external
institutions such as OCAC and Pakistan Institute of Petroleum (PIP), enabling employees to
benefit from industry-leading expertise and best practices.

Our Apprenticeship and Trainee Engineer programs continue to serve as critical talent
pipelines, providing hands-on learning in various engineering disciplines.

We believe that investing in our people is investing in NRL's future, and we remain committed
to building a capable, confident, and high-performing workforce.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT

NRL has implemented a robust Integrated Management System encompassing Occupational
Health & Safety, Environment, and Quality. This system forms the foundation of our operations
and decision-making processes.

Our commitment to environmental protection is reflected in the production of Euro-standard
fuels, and our continuous efforts to conserve resources, minimize waste, and enhance energy
efficiency.

From senior management to frontline supervisors, every individual at NRL holds responsibility
and accountability for ensuring compliance with health, safety and environmental standards
- including proactive risk management. Our employees are expected to adopt and follow best
practices that protect the environment by:

e Reducing emissions
e Promoting recycling
¢ Preventing pollution
e Using recyclable materials efficiently

At NRL, we are dedicated to the ongoing improvement of Occupational Health, Safety,
Environment, and Quality (HSEQ) standards. The company holds internationally recognized
certifications, including:

e |SO 9001:2015 — Quality Management

¢ |SO 14001:2015 — Environmental Management
e SO 45001:2018 — Occupational Health and Safety Management

We strictly comply with all relevant legal and regulatory requirements related to environmental
protection in our refinery operations. Furthermore, we acknowledge our role in promoting
sustainable development and are committed to improving environmental conditions in the
communities we serve.
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QUALITY CONTROL FUNCTION

Quality Control (QC) function at NRL manages the testing of crude oil, gases & fuels,
petrochemicals, and a variety of other petroleum industry products/materials using modern
sophisticated analytical equipment’s. The role is, however, not limited to quality control alone
but quality assurance & research and development work is also carried out to give a basis
for innovation in processes & products. QC also deals in project-based work under defined
testing services.

NRLs QC function has been awarded ISO/IEC 17025:2017 accreditation by the Pakistan
National Accreditation Council (PNAC), Ministry of Science and Technology, Government
of Pakistan which has been fully adopted. This accreditation is basically the criteria for
laboratories to demonstrate the technical competence to carry out specific test methods,
generate valid internationally traceable calibration data, test results, and operate an effective
quality system. With this valuable achievement, NRL has reached a new level of Management
System which brings the company at par with renowned companies that are equipped with
world class testing facilities and laboratories.

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA
Key operating and financial data of last six years (2020 - 2025) is shown on page 53.
REFINERIES PRODUCTION

According to capacity analysis, NRL is currently the third largest refinery of Pakistan with
production capacity of 23.10 million barrels per annum. NRL is the only refining complex in
Pakistan which includes Lube Refinery, producing multiple grades of Lube Base Oils to meet
domestic demand of the Country, and a BTX Plant.

CREDIT RATINGS

The long-term and short-term entity ratings of the Company is AA (maintained from last year)
and Al (maintained from last year) respectively by Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA).
These ratings signify a very low expectation of credit risk and a strong capability for timely
payment of financial commitments. Given the current situation and challenges outlined
earlier, the Company’s outlook has been marked as developing while the rating watch status
is continuing.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

During the financial year, the Company contributed Rs. 103.10 billion to the National exchequer
in the shape of taxes, duties and levies and earned valuable foreign exchange of USS 148.38
million through the export of Naphtha, Bitumen, Furnace Oil and Lube Base Oils.

SYSTEM OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The company ensures that adequate internal controls are in place for all its activities including
financial transactions. There is an internal audit department in place which conducts
regular audits to assess if internal financial controls are adequate in design and have been
appropriately implemented and monitored. The directors of the company have constituted
an “Audit Committee” that reviews the internal audit department’s reports on quarterly
basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to good corporate governance and has complied with the applicable
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019 and states that:

a)

b)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly
its state of affairs, the result of its operations, change in equity and cash flows.

Proper books of account have been maintained in the manner required under the
Companies Act 2017.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of
financial statements. Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment. During the year, the Company has reassessed and elected to change its
accounting policy to measure leasehold land (classified in property, plant and equipment)
by using revaluation model. The details of the changes are discussed in Note 3.22 of the
financial statements.

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed
in the preparation of financial statements.

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented
and monitored.

There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The value of investment of various funds, based on their respective accounts as at
30 June, 2025 are as under:

(Rs. in millions)

Description Un-audited

Management staff
Pension Fund 7,016
Provident Fund 1,520
Post-Retirement Medical Fund 1,692
Gratuity Fund 127
Non-Management staff
Gratuity Fund 175
Provident Fund 933

Eight directors have either already attended the directors’ training program as required
in previous years or meet the exemption criteria as contained in the regulations.

No trade in the shares of the Company was carried out by the Board of Directors, CEO,
CFO, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary, Executives and their spouses and minor
children except that mentioned in “Pattern of Shareholding”.
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Composition and Meetings of the Board of Directors

The Board comprises of seven directors and a Chief Executive. Currently there is no female
Director on Company’s Board.

The composition of the board throughout the year is as follows:

Category Names

i Independent Directors Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan
Mr. Khondamir Nusratkhujaev
Mr. Tariq Igbal Khan *

ii Non-executive Directors Mr. Laith G. Pharaon
Alternate Director: Mr. Shuaib A. Malik/
Mr. Sajid Nawaz ***
Mr. Wael G. Pharaon
Alternate Director: Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz
Mr. Shuaib A. Malik
Mr. Abdus Sattar
Mr. Sajid Nawaz ***

iii Executive Director Mr. Shahid.Waheed Khwaja ** / Mr. Asad Hasan **

o Elected as director in the elections held on October 21, 2024.

**  Mr. Asad Hasan appointed as CEO w.e.f. December 2, 2024 in place of Mr. Shahid Waheed
Khwaja.

*** Consequent upon election of directors held on October 21, 2024, Mr. Sajid Nawaz was
then appointed as alternate director for Mr. Laith G. Pharaon.

During the financial year 2024-25 eight meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The
attendance of the Directors is as under:

Total Number  Meeting

Name of Directors of Meetings Attended

Mr. Laith G. Pharaon

Alternate Director: Mr. Shuaib A. Malik / Mr. Sajid Nawaz 8 8
Mr. Wael G. Pharaon

Alternate Director: Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz e £
Mr. Shuaib A. Malik — Chairman 8 8
Mr. Abdus Sattar 8 8
Mr. Khondamir Nusratkhujaev — IDB Nominee 8 7
Mr. Sajid Nawaz *** 2 2
Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan 8 7
Mr. Tariq Igbal Khan 6 6
Mr. Shahid Waheed Khwaja - Chief Executive 3 3
Mr. Asad Hasan- Chief Executive 5 5

* Held during the period concerned directors were on board.

**  attended by the directors or their alternates on the Board of the Company.

*** attended the meetings as Non-Executive Director before the constitution of board due to
election of directors.
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Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

HR&R Committee consists of four members. Following is the attendance of the members
during the financial year 2024-25:

Total Number  Meeting

Name of Members of Meetings Attended

Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan — Chairman 1 0

Mr. Shuaib A. Malik 1 1

Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz 1 1
(Alternate for Mr. Wael G. Pharaon)

Mr. Asad Hasan — Chief Executive 1 1

Audit Committee

Audit committee consists of three members. The attendance of the Directors’ for Audit
Committee meetings for the year ended June 30, 2025 is as follows:

Total Number  Meeting

Name of Members of Meetings  Attended

Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan — Chairman 4 4

Mr. Abdus Sattar 4 4

Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz 4 4
(Alternate for Mr. Wael G. Pharaon)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board is authorized to determine the remuneration / fee of its directors for attending
meetings of the Board. No remuneration shall be paid for attending meetings of the
Committee(s) of the Board and for attending General Meeting(s) or any other business
meeting(s) of the company. Besides, travelling, hotel and other expenses incurred for
attending the meetings are also paid.

The details of fee paid during the year and remuneration package of Chief Executive Officer
are disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Pattern of shareholdings is shown on page 140.

AUDITORS

Present auditors Messrs. A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. Accordingly, the Board, on the recommendation
of the Board Audit Committee, recommends the reappointment of Messrs. A.F. Ferguson &
Co. Chartered Accountants as the auditors of the Company for the financial year 2025-26 at a
fee to be mutually agreed.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

National Refinery Limited (the Company) is engaged in the manufacturing of wide range of
petroleum products with the objective to achieve sustainable productivity, profitability and
high standards of safety, occupational health and environmental care. This entails human
resource development, enhancing value addition, implementing conservation measures and
growth by up-gradation and addition of newer generation technologies.

The Company requires all its Board Members and Employees to act within the authority
conferred upon them and in the best interests of the Company and observe all the Company’s
policies and procedures as well as relevant laws and regulations, as are applicable in individual
capacity or otherwise, including but not limited to the corporate values, business principles
and the acceptable and unacceptable behaviour (hereinafter called the Company’s Code of
Conduct) embodied in this document.

The Company believes that the credibility, goodwill and repute earned over the years can be
maintained through continued conviction in our corporate values of honesty, justice, integrity
and respect for people. The Company strongly promotes trust, openness, teamwork and
professionalism in its entire business activities.

* The business principles are derived from the above stated corporate values and are applied
to all facets of business through well-established procedures. These procedures define
behavior expected from each employee in the discharge of his / her responsibility.

= NRL recognizes following obligations, which need to be discharged with best efforts,
commitment and efficiency:

e Safeguarding of shareholders’ interest and a suitable return on equity.

e Service customers by providing products, which offer value in terms of price, quality,
safety and environmental impact.

e Respect human rights, provide congenial working environment, offer competitive terms
of employment, develop human resource and be an equal opportunity employer.

e Seek mutually beneficial business relationship with contractors, suppliers and investment
partners.

* The Company believes that profit is essential for business survival. It is a measure of efficiency
and the value that the customer places on products and services produced by the Company.

* The Company requires honesty and fairnessin all aspect of its business and in its relationships
with all those with whom it does business. The direct or indirect offer, payment, soliciting
and accepting of bribe in any form is undesirable.

* The Company is fully committed to reliability and accuracy of financial statements and
transparency of transactions in accordance with established procedures and practices.

» The Company does not support any political party or contributes funds to groups having
political interests. The Company will however, promote its legitimate business interests
through trade associations.

40 National Refinery Limited - Annual Report 2025



* The Company, consistent with its commitments to sustainable developments, has a
systematic approach to the management of health, safety and environment.

* The Company is committed to observe laws of Pakistan and is fully aware of its social
responsibility. It would assist the community in activities such as education, sports,
environment preservation, training programs, skills development and employment within
the parameters of its commercial objectives.

= The Company supports free market system. It seeks to compete fairly and ethically within
the framework of applicable competition laws in the country. The Company will not stop
others from competing freely with it.

* In view of the critical importance of its business and impact on national economy, the
Company provides all relevant information about its activities to legitimate interested
parties, subject to any overriding constraints of confidentiality and cost.

= The Company requires all its board members and employees to essentially avoid conflict of
interest between private financial and/or other activities and their professional role in the
conduct of Company business.

* Noboard member or employee shallin any manner disclose to any person or cause disclosure
of any information or documents, official or otherwise, relating to the Company, except
those published, and unless he/she is authorised by the management.

= All papers, books, drawings, sketches, photographs, documents and similar papers
containing analysis, formulas, notes or information relating to the Company’s business
affairs or operations shall always be treated as the Company property, whether prepared
by the employee or otherwise and no employee shall be permitted to carry any of these
outside business premises unless specifically authorised to do so by the management.

= The Company’s property, funds, facilities and services must be used only for authorised
purposes.

* The board members or employees of the Company specifically those coming in direct contact
with the vendors doing or seeking to do business with the Company shall not receive favours
or incur obligations. In case any contractor/supplier to have business relations with the
Company happen to be a relative of an official who is entrusted the responsibility of opening
/evaluation/award of supply/contract job or with execution or certification of material/
services, he/she shall immediately bring the fact to the notice of Managing Director who
may entrust the responsibility to another.

= Each employee shall devote his/her full time and energy exclusively to the business and
interests of the Company. In particular, no employee (including those on leave) unless
otherwise permitted by the Company, shall directly or indirectly engage in any other
profession or business or enter the services of or be employed in any capacity for any purpose
whatsoever and for any part of his/her time by any other person, government department,
firm or company and/or shall not have any private financial dealings with any other persons
of firms having business relations with the Company for sale or purchase of any materials or
equipments or supply of labour or for any other purpose. Every employee shall hold himself
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in readiness to perform any duties required of him by his/her superiors to the best of his/her
ability.

No board member or employee of the Company shall, directly or indirectly, deal in the shares
of the Company in any manner during the closed period, as determined and informed by the
Company.

No board member or employee of the Company shall practice insider trading.

Without prejudice to any penal action defined in any statute, as applicable, against any
kind of non-compliances/violations, non-compliance with the Company’s Code of Conduct
may expose the person involved to disciplinary action as per Company’s rules and/or as
determined by the management or the Board of Directors of the Company, as the case may
be, on case to case basis.

The Company is fully committed to providing a safe and respectful working environment
for all the employees. We strictly prohibit any form of harassment at the workplace. Any
instance of harassment will be promptly and thoroughly inquired, and if accused is found
guilty, penalties will be imposed in accordance with the Company’s Code of Conduct for
Protection against Harassment at Workplace and applicable laws.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)
REGULATIONS, 2019

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are eight (8) as per the following:

a.|Male Eight
b.| Female* | None

* The Company has filed a constitutional petition before the Honorable High Court of
Sindh challenging, inter alia, the compliance of clause No. 7 of the Regulations relating
to appointment of female director, which is pending adjudication. The law officer
of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan has undertaken that no action
contrary to the law would be taken against the Company.

2. The composition of board is as follows:

Category \ETy [

Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan
a) | Independent Directors Mr. Khondamir Nusratkhujaev
Mr. Tariq Igbal Khan

Mr. Laith G. Pharaon
Alternate Director: Mr. Sajid Nawaz
b) | Non-Executive Directors Mr. Wael G. Pharaon
Alternate Director: Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz
Mr. Shuaib A. Malik
Mr. Abdus Sattar

Mr. Asad Hasan

c) Executive Director . . i
Chief Executive Officer

d) Female Directors None

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than
seven listed companies, including this company;
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10.

11.

12.

The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting
policies and procedures;

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of
particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is
maintained by the company;

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters
have been taken by the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions
of the Act and these Regulations;

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence,
by a director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the
requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and
circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

The Directors were apprised of their duties and responsibilities from time to time. Seven
directors have either already attended the directors’ training program as required in
previous years or meet the exemption criteria as contained in the Regulations;

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary
and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of

employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the board;

The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan - Chairman
Mr. Abdus Sattar

Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz
(Alternate Director for Mr. Wael G. Pharaon)
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan - Chairman
Mr. Shuaib A. Malik

Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz
(Alternate Director for Mr. Wael G. Pharaon)

Mr. Asad Hasan

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the committee for compliance;

The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

a) Audit Committee: Quarterly

b) HR and Remuneration Committee: Yearly;

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function experienced for the purpose
and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they
and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants
(IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not
a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief
executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or
director of the company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard;

We confirm that all requirements of the regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 of the
Regulations have been complied with; and

Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,
32, 33 and 36 (non-mandatory requirements) are below:
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Requirement Explanation

The Board may constitute a separate | Theresponsibilities as prescribed 29
committee, designed as the nomination | for the nomination committee
committee, of such number and class of | are being taken care of at board
directors, as it may deem appropriate in | level as and when needed so

its circumstances. a separate committee is not

considered to be necessary.

The Board may constitute the risk | The Board has not constituted 30
management committee, of such | a risk management committee
number and class of directors, as it may | as risk management framework

deem appropriate in its circumstances, | is managed at Company’s level

to carry out a review of effectiveness | by the leadership team which is

of risk management procedures and | headed by the CEO and the CEO
present a report to the Board. apprises the Board accordingly.

The Company may post on its website | As the regulation provides | 35(1)
key elements of its significant policies | concession with respect to

including but not limited to the | disclosure of key elements

following: of significant policies on the

i. Communication and disclosure | website, only those policies
policy; which were considered

ii. Code of conduct for members | necessary, have been posted.
of board of directors, senior

management and other employees;

iii. Risk management policy;

iv. Internal control policy;

v. Whistle blowing policy;

vi. Corporate social responsibility /
sustainability / environmental, social
and governance related policy;

vii. Policies for promoting DE&I and
protection against harassment at the
workplace.

On behalf of the Board

jye

Shuaib A. Malik
Chairman

\

Asad Hasan
Chief Executive Officer

August 11, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF NATIONAL REFINERY LIMITED

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
National Refinery Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2025 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the
Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight
any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries
of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply
with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company'’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related
party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with

the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended
June 30, 2025.

Further, we highlight content of paragraph 1 of the statement where the matter of representation of
female director on the Board of Directors of the Company has been explained.

A.F.Fergi‘rgon & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Dated: September 4, 2025

UDIN: CR202510059n08IYKRB7



TERMS OF REFERENCE OF AUDIT
COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted a fully functional Audit Committee. The features of the terms of
reference of the committee in accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance are as
follows:

(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)

(f)
(g)

(h)

()

Determination of appropriate measures to safeguard the company’s assets;

Review of preliminary announcements of results prior to external communication and
publication;

Review of quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements of the company, prior to
their approval by the Board of Directors, focusing on:

e Major judgmental areas;

e Significant adjustments resulting from the audit;
e The going concern assumption;

e Any changes in accounting policies and practices;

e Compliance with applicable accounting standards;

e Compliance with the code of corporate governance regulations and other statutory
and regulatory requirements; and

e All related party transactions.

Facilitating the external audit and discussion with external auditors of major observations
arising from interim and final audits and any matter that the auditors may wish to highlight
(in the absence of management, where necessary);

Review of management letter issued by external auditors and management’s response
thereto;

Ensuring coordination between the internal and external auditors;

Review of the scope and extent of internal audit, audit plan, reporting framework and
procedures and ensuring that the internal audit function has adequate resources and is
appropriately placed;

Consideration of major findings of internal investigations of activities characterized by
fraud, corruption and abuse of power and management’s response thereto;

Ascertaining that the internal control systems including financial and operational controls,
accounting systems for timely and appropriate recording of purchases and sales, receipts
and payments, assets and liabilities and reporting structure are adequate and effective;

Review of company’s statement on internal control systems prior to endorsement by the
Board of Directors and internal audit reports;
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(k)

()

(m)

(n)

(p)

(a)

(r)

(s)

(t)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Instituting special projects, value for money studies or other investigations on any matter
specified by the Board of Directors, in consultation with the Chief Executive and to consider
remittance of any matter to the external auditors or to any other external body;

Determination of compliance with relevant statutory requirements;

Monitoring compliance with the code of corporate governance regulations and identification
of significant violations thereof;

Review of arrangement for staff and management to report to audit committee in
confidence, concerns, if any, about actual or potential improprieties in financial and other
matters and recommend instituting remedial and mitigating measures;

Recommend to the Board the appointment of external auditors, their removal, audit fees,
the provision of any service permissible to be rendered to the company by the external
auditors in addition to audit of its financial statements, measures for redressal and
rectification of non-compliances with the Regulations;

Review and assist the Board, on governance and oversight of sustainability risks and
opportunities, which includes the environmental, social and governance considerations,
within the company, in setting the company’s sustainability strategies, priorities and targets
to create long term corporate value;

Review and recommend to the Board policies to promote diversity, equity and inclusion
(DE&I) are in place to encourage gender mainstreaming, gender equality and the
participation of women on the board, management and workforce of the company;

Support the Board in proactively identifying, understanding, and overseeing the principal as
well as the emerging sustainability risks and opportunities relevant to the company and its
business, including climate-related risks and opportunities, assess their potential financial
and operational impacts, and recommend strategies for management and mitigation
thereof;

Ensures that the company’s sustainability and DE&I related strategies, priorities and targets
as well as performance against these targets are periodically reviewed and monitored;

Monitor and review sustainability related risks and opportunities of the company, oversee
compliance of relevant laws pertaining to relevant sustainability related considerations and
its appropriate disclosures;

Submit to the board a report, at least once a year, on embedding sustainability principles
into the company’s strategy and operations to increase corporate value;

Review and recommend directors report that provide adequate disclosures regarding
the assessment of sustainability related risks, how these are managed or mitigated, and
measures taken to promote DE&I in the Company; and

Consideration of any other issue or matter as may be assigned by the Board.
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TERMS OF REFERENCE OF HUMAN
RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION
(HR&R) COMMITTEE

The Board adopted the responsibilities contained in clause (xxv) of the Code 2012 from (i) to
(iv) as the Terms of Reference (TOR) of the HR&R Committee.

The committee shall be responsible for:
i)  Recommending human resource management policies to the board;

ii) Recommending to the board the selection, evaluation, compensation (including retirement
benefits) and succession planning of the CEO;

iii) Recommending to the board the selection, evaluation, compensation (including retirement
benefits) of COO, CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit; and

iv) Consideration and approval on recommendations of CEO on such matters for key
management positions who report directly to CEO or COO.

GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT
UNDER SECP’S CIRCULAR 10 OF 2024

Following is gender pay gap analysis calculated for the year ended June 30, 2025:
i. Mean Gender Pay Gap: 5.79 %
ii. Median Gender Pay Gap: (1.80) %

The above percentages reflect the gender pay gap of relevant male versus female employees in
different employment grades across the organization.

We are an equal opportunity employer and do not discriminate in pay based on gender. We
remain fully committed to promoting gender diversity and equality in our compensation
practices.

Vi
4

Chief Executive Officer
Date: August 11, 2025
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SIXYEARS AT A GLANCE

Description 2024-25 2022-23  2021-22
Rupees in million

Statement of Profit or Loss

Net sales 307,663 308,842 298,805 251,876 139,625 125,613
Cost of sales 313,897 316,610 285,608 228,081 135,700 136,731
Purchases 274,929 300,809 274,064 240,750 134,357 111,935
Gross (loss) / profit (6,234) (7,768) 13,197 23,795 3,925  (11,118)
Operating (loss) / profit (7,696) (9,346) 11,122 20,878 2,341 (12,350)
(Loss) / profit before tax (18,028) (18,656) (5,123) 11,810 1,400 (14,863)
(Loss) / profit after tax (14,867) (15,790) (4,463) 9,079 1,770 (4,064)

Statement of Financial Position

Share Capital 800 800 800 800 800 800
Reserves 3,382 18,417 33,799 39,019 30,788 29,037
Revaluation surplus on leasehold land 46,134 - - - - -
Shareholder equity 50,316 19,217 34,599 39,819 31,588 29,837
Fixed Assets 67,882 23,560 25,599 28,349 31,228 34,218
Current Assets 64,954 67,859 78,788 69,591 36,192 21,346
Current Liabilities 87,060 83,264 76,445 61,869 42,920 32,983
Net current assets / liabilities (22,106) (15,405) 2,343 7,722 (6,728)  (11,637)
Financial Ratios 2024-25 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20
Gross (loss) / profit % (2.03) (2.52) 4.42 9.45 2.81 (8.85)
Net (loss) / profit to sales % (4.83) (5.11) (1.49) 3.60 1.27 (3.24)
EBITDA Margin to sales % (2.01) (1.95) 1.56 7.21 4.61 (7.20)
Return on Equity % (29.55) (82.17) (12.90) 22.80 5.60 (13.62)
Return on Capital Employed % (42.76) (58.68) (11.99) 25.43 5.76 (12.76)

Liquidity Ratios

Current Ratio Times 0.75 0.81 1.03 1.12 0.84 0.65
Quick / Acid test ratio Times 0.41 0.22 0.40 0.39 0.34 0.29
Cash to Current Liabilities Times 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.02

Activity / Turnover Ratios

Inventory turnover Days 45.39 55.63 59.13 52.95 44.07 49.35
Debtors turnover Days 16.16 19.10 23.74 18.25 16.83 16.51
Creditors turnover Days 26.92 29.69 41.95 38.37 32.91 29.18
Total Assets turnover ratio Times 2.06 2.99 2.67 2.45 1.84 1.98
Fixed assets turnover ratio Times 4.53 13.11 11.67 8.88 4.47 3.67

Investment / Market Ratios

(Loss) / Earnings per share (LPS) and diluted (LPS) / EPS Rs. (185.91) (197.46) (55.81) 113.53 22.14 (50.82)
Price earning ratio Times * * * 2.22 23.63 *
Dividend yield ratio % - - - 5.94 191 -
Cash Dividend payout ratio % - - - 13.21 45.17 -
Dividend cover ratio Times - - - 7.57 221 -
Cash Dividend per share Rs./share - - - 15.00 10.00 -
Market value per share at year end Rs./share 243 265 150 253 523 107
Breakup value per share

(without surplus on revaluation of leasehold land) Rs./share 52 240 432 498 395 373
Breakup value per share

(with surplus on revaluation of leasehold land) 629 - - - - -

* Not applicable due to loss for the year.
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GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATION

(Loss) / profit after Tax (Loss) / earnings per share
(Rs. in million) (Rs. per share)
15,000 150.00 11353
10,000 2072 100.00 -
50.00
5,000 1,770 ] 22.14
q E:E:, 2021 2022
2021 2022 m (50.00) @
(5,000) (50.82) (55.81)
(4,064) (4,463) (100.00)
(10,000) (150.00)
(15,000) (200.00) T Ao
14,867, 197.46; i
(20,000) {=720) ( ) (250.00)
Gross (loss) / profit percentage Current ratio
%
1.20 112
15.00 1.03
1.00
10.00 9.45 0.84 0.81 0.75
0.80
4.42 0.65
5.00 2.81 0.60
. - . - f 0.40
(5.00) } 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 0.20
(2.03)
(2.52)
(10.00) -
(8.85) 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Throughput Total Sales
M.Tons M.Tons
oo 1,958,666 AU S 1,730,543 1,612,414
5 " 1,930,854 el D=y
2,000,000 1704885 R 1428225 4383201
1,676,531 1585345 1,586,295 704 1,500,000 —
1,500,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
500,000 500,000
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
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GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATION

ASSETS

As at June 30, 2025 As at June 30, 2024

14% 16%

B Fixed Assets
W Stock-in-trade W Stock-in-trade

W Trade receivables 10% W Trade receivables

12%

20% /

B Other receivables
m Cash & bank balances

m Others

8% /

45% 23%
% / B Fixed Assets 0% /

W Other receivables
m Cash & bank balances

m Others

SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

24% /

As at June 30, 2025

1%
2%
oy
33% \ / 31%

7%

M Share Capital
B Reserves

W Revaluation surplus on
leasehold land

B Long term borrowing
B Trade & other payables
 Borrowings

W Others

51% /

As at June 30, 2024

v,

18%
0%

;

\_ 28%

M Share Capital
B Reserves

W Revaluation surplus on
leasehold land

® Long term borrowing
B Trade & other payables
W Borrowings

B Others

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

(Rs. in million)

120,000
103,103
100,000
88,892
80,000
58,592 59,199
60,000
49,686
40,000 32,890
\ -
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of National Refinery Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of National Refinery Limited (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025, and the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information
and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the
audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2025 and of the
loss and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Ao



Following are the Key audit matters:

S. No.

@

Key audit matters

Deferred Tax

(Refer note 3.13.2 and 9 to the financial
statements)

The Company has booked net deferred tax
asset of Rs. 15,884 million as at June 30, 2025
which is mainly recognised on minimum tax
and business tax losses.

Deferred tax asset valuation involves
complexities in the calculation of future
taxable profits. This forecast is also inherently
uncertain, as it requires management to make
significant estimates and assumptions about
future periods. The most sensitive key
assumption to this forecast includes refinery
margins, production yields and capacity
utilization.

Due to this involvement of significant
estimates and management judgements we
considered this as a key audit matter.

ﬁb.(.

2 of 6 pages

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our audit procedures included the following:

e considered the expected timing of
utilisation of the deferred tax assets
keeping in view the relevant provision of
Income Tax Ordinance 2001 that apply to
the utilisation of minimum tax and tax
losses;

e evaluated the extent to which sufficient
future taxable profits would be available in
the period within which the related losses
can be utilized, considering limits on the
length of time that losses can be carried
forward;

e considered whether the tax balances were
calculated using appropriate and
substantively enacted tax laws and rates;

e obtained financial projections from the
Company’s management;

e obtained understanding of the Company’s
process of preparing financial projections
along with its key assumptions;

e evaluated the financial projections and
assessed the likelihood of the Company

generating sufficient future taxable
profits; and
e checked that the presentation and

disclosures related to deferred tax are in
accordance with the applicable accounting
and reporting standards.

Independent Auditor’s Report



S. No.

(i)

Key audit matters

Stock-in-trade

(Refer note 3.5 and 11 to the financial
statements)

Stock-in-trade as at June 30, 2025 comprises
of crude oil and condensate, semi-finished
and finished products amounting to
Rs. 13,302 million, Rs. 8,414 million and
Rs. 7,726 million respectively. Crude oil,
condensate, semi-finished and finished
products are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable value. The inventory quantities are
determined through complex process
involving various estimates.

Due to the significance of the stock balances,
related complexities involved and significant
management judgements in determining net
realisable value and resultant carrying value of
stock in trade, this is considered a key audit
matter.

i

3 of 6 pages

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our audit procedures included the following:

o attended the physical count of the stock-
in-trade and observed the said parameters
along with the employees of the Company
and an external surveyor;

o our audit work included obtaining
samples of stock-in-trade from the storage
tanks to determine the nature /
characteristics of the product. Such
samples were sent to the Company’s
laboratory to further confirm the nature of
the product after our internal coding of the
samples;

» obtained the stock-in-trade count report
of the surveyor for 100% of the stock and
re-performed  the  working  for
determination of volume;

s assessed the background and experience
of the surveyor to ensure their competence
and capability;

» assessed  appropriateness of  the
Company’s accounting policies for
valuation of stock in trade and compliance
of those policies with applicable
accounting standards;

e obtained an understanding and assessed
reasonableness of the management’s
determination of net realisable value
(NRV) and key estimates adopted,
including future selling prices, future cost
to complete work-in-progress and cost
necessary to make the sales and their
basis;

» compared the NRV to the cost of stock in
trade to assess whether any adjustments
are required to value stock-in-trade in
accordance with the accounting policy;
and

e checked that the presentation and
disclosures related to stock-in-trade are in
accordance with the applicable accounting
and reporting standards.

Independent Auditor’s Report



S. No.

(iii)

Key audit matters

Property, plant and equipment

(Refer note 3.22 and 4 to the financial
statements)

The Company has elected to change its
accounting policy to measure leasehold land
(classified in property, plant and equipment)
from cost to revaluation model. As a result, a
revaluation surplus amounting to Rs. 46,134
million computed as the difference between
net book value of Rs. 40 million and fair value
determined at Rs. 46,174 million has been
recorded in the financial statements. The fair
value was determined by management based
on a valuation performed by an external
independent valuation expert.

The determination of value of leasehold land
involved significant assumptions including the
valuation methodology, the selection of
comparable market data and assumptions
about future land use. Changes in these
assumptions could result in a significant
change to the fair value.

Due to the involvement of significant
management judgement, estimation
uncertainty and involvement of auditor’s
expert, we considered this as a key audit
matter.

Mae,

4 of 6 pages

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our audit procedures, amongst others,

included the following:

e evaluated management’s change in
accounting policy to  assess its

appropriateness in accordance with the
applicable accounting and reporting
standards;

o cevaluated the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the management expert;

¢ involved the auditor’s expert for the review
of valuation carried out by the
management expert;

e assessed the completeness, relevance and
accuracy of source data used by the expert;

e tested the mathematical accuracy of the
valuation report;

e reperformed the calculation of the
revaluation surplus; and

e checked that all required disclosures
related to the change in accounting policy,
fair value measurement, and significant
judgments are adequately presented in the
financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report



Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017);

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

(d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’'s report is
Farrukh Rehman.

A. F. Ferfuson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Date: September 4, 2025
UDIN: AR2025100599kfa68tSR
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

Note 2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 4 67,879,272 23,555,669
Intangible assets 5 3,203 3,915
Long-term investment 6 14,123 14,822
Long-term loans 7 12,591 20,280
Long-term deposits 8 30,265 30,265
Deferred taxation 9 15,884,169 10,931,383
Retirement benefit prepayments 22 717,659 757,326
84,541,282 35,313,660
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spares and chemicals 10 2,037,193 1,802,405
Stock-in-trade 11 29,441,642 49,719,863
Trade receivables 12 17,759,495 9,855,369
Loans and advances 13 116,133 104,574
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 14 34,491 55,638
Interest accrued 35,858 68,179
Other receivables 15 12,526,307 2,943,508
Taxation - payments less provision 2,149,673 2,744,783
Short-term investments 16 173,607 -
Cash and bank balances 17 679,940 564,360
64,954,339 67,858,679
TOTAL ASSETS 149,495,621 103,172,339
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 18 799,666 799,666
Reserves 19 3,382,296 18,416,889
Revaluation surplus on leasehold land 413 46,134,419 -
50,316,381 19,216,555
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term borrowing 20 11,250,000 -
Lease liability 21 125,646 143,916
Retirement benefit obligations 22 743,225 547,712
12,118,871 691,628
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 23 36,150,971 29,004,804
Unclaimed dividend 58,877 59,128
Unpaid dividend 24 42,852 43,658
Accrued mark-up 25 1,187,569 1,251,885
Provisions 26 112,361 112,361
Borrowings 27 45,739,469 52,777,898
Current portion of long-term borrowing 20 3,750,000 -
Current portion of lease liability 21 18,270 14,422
87,060,369 83,264,156
TOTAL LIABILITIES 99,179,240 83,955,784
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 28
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 149,495,621 103,172,339
The annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
/
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)

Revenue from contracts with customers 29 408,074,583 396,927,746
Trade discounts, taxes, duties, levies

and price differentials 30 (100,411,730) (88,085,918)
Net revenue from contracts with customers 307,662,853 308,841,828
Cost of sales 31 (313,897,084) (316,609,825)
Gross loss (6,234,231) (7,767,997)
Distribution cost 32 (891,012) (649,259)
Administrative expenses 33 (1,117,601) (1,180,566)
Other income 34 562,152 347,398
Other operating expenses 35 (15,797) (95,470)
Operating loss (7,696,489) (9,345,894)
Finance cost - net 36 (10,331,167) (9,310,053)
Loss before taxation and levies (18,027,656) (18,655,947)
Levies 37 (414,235) (224,418)
Loss before taxation (18,441,891) (18,880,365)
Taxation 38 3,574,969 3,090,150
Loss after taxation (14,866,922) (15,790,215)

(Rupees)
Loss per share - basic and diluted 39 (185.91) (197.46)
The annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
4
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STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)

Loss after taxation (14,866,922) (15,790,215)
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified
to statement of profit or loss

Revaluation surplus on leasehold land 4.1.3 46,134,419 -
Change in fair value of long term investment 6 (699) 267

Remeasurements of post employment

benefit obligations - note 22 22 (167,245) 407,928
45,966,475 408,195

Deferred tax thereon 273 (104)
Other comprehensive income - net of tax 45,966,748 408,091
Total comprehensive Income 31,099,826 (15,382,124)

The annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

/
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 2025

2024

(Rupees in thousand)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from / (used in) operations 40 3,359,206 (3,848,541)
Income tax and levies paid (1,196,670) (1,057,016)
Mark-up paid on Conventional financing (5,866,648) (8,852,790)
Mark-up paid on Islamic financing (2,510,698) (167,091)
Decrease in long-term loans 7,689 5,612
Payment made to staff retirement benefit funds - (20,706)
Net cash used in operating activities (6,207,121) (13,940,532)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,700,543)

(1,502,681)

Purchase of intangible assets 5.1 (769) (3,884)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,479 15,360
Purchase of short-term investments (173,607) -
Return on investments and bank accounts 268,588 153,728
Net cash used in investing activities (1,603,852) (1,337,477)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-term borrowing 15,000,000 -
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 318,449,473 208,607,986
Repayment of short-term borrowings (339,689,810) (190,869,634)
Dividend paid (1,057) (1,452)
Lease rentals paid 21.2 (33,961) (34,846)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (6,275,355) 17,702,054
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (14,086,328) 2,424,045
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (9,013,538) (11,437,583)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 41 (23,099,866) (9,013,538)

The annexed notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

1.1 National Refinery Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on August 19, 1963 as a public limited
company and its shares are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing, production and sale of a large range of
petroleum products. The refinery complex of the Company comprises of three refineries,
consisting of two lube refineries, commissioned in 1966 and 1985, and a fuel refinery added to
the complex in 1977. The Company has also commissioned Diesel Hydro De-sulphurisation
(DHDS) and Isomerisation (ISOM) units during the financial years 2017 and 2018 respectively.

1.2 In August 2023, the Government announced the ‘Pakistan Oil Refining Policy for upgradation of
Existing / Brownfield Refineries 2023' as amended in February 2024 (Brownfield Policy). The
latest deadline for accepting the policy was set for October 2024. The Company completed all
the formalities and forwarded the mutually agreed duly initialed Upgrade Agreement to OGRA in
March 2024 within the earlier stipulated deadline. However, the signing of the Upgrade
Agreement and the establishment of the escrow account required under the Brownfield Policy
remains pending due to delays on account of reasons not attributable to the Company. The
Brownfield Policy has superseded all the previous policies.

1.3 Considering the recent financial results, the management has in place certain plans and
measures to improve its liquidity and financial performance which includes adopting a more
agile strategy to alter its crude mix (from heavier to lighter crudes) to boost the yield of more
profitable products, while reducing the yield of loss making products, resulting in improved gross
profit margins. The Company has also commenced the sale of Motor Gasoline 95-RON, a
deregulated product, during the year which yields higher margins compared to Motor Gasoline.
It is also regaining its footprint in the market of Lube Based Qil, which has always been the
competitive edge of the Company, and further plans to improve its sales to optimum levels in FY
2026. More focus has been placed on Health, Safety and Environment (HSE), plant maintenance
and reliability to sustainably achieve higher throughput, ensuring continuous supplies, improved
customer satisfaction and retention, and achievement of economies of scale. The Company has
started the export of Wax post year end and received orders from several local and foreign
companies. Furthermore, strategies have been put in place to increase Liquefied Petroleum Gas
(LPG) sales and to utilize its BTX Plant in the near future to diversify its product portfolio.

All these measures are expected to bring in sustained profitability. Additionally, the
management has been closely monitoring the cashflows and forecasts on a monthly basis in
order to manage the resources to meet short-term liabilities, while adequate financing
arrangements are also in place. The Board of Directors have also reviewed the profitability and
cashflow forecast of the Company for the next one year. Based on the above review and
measures employed, the management has adequate financing to satisfy their obligations in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1.4 The geographical locations and addresses of the Company's business units, including plant are as
under:

- Refinery complex and registered office of the Company is situated at 7-B Korangi Industrial
Area, Karachi; and

- Oil terminal at Keamari, Karachi.
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in
Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as
otherwise disclosed in the respective accounting policies notes.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency and figures are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees.

2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are as follows:
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Taxation

The Company recognises provision for income tax based on best current estimates.
However, where the final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences impact the income tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred taxation is recognised taking into account availability of taxable profits. The
management uses assumptions about future best estimates of the availability of future
taxable profits based on available information.

Post employment benefits
Estimates relating to post employment benefits are disclosed in note 22.
Property, plant and equipment

Estimates with respect to depreciation method and useful life of property, plant and
equipment is disclosed in note 4.1 to these financial statements. Further, the Company
reviews the carrying value of assets for impairment, if any, on each reporting period.
Estimate relating to fair valuation of leasehold land are disclosed in note 44.1.1.

Stock-in-trade

Estimates relating to net realisable value of stock-in-trade are disclosed in note 3.5.
Further the inventory quantities are determined through complex process involving
various estimates.

Provisions and Contingencies

The Company is subject to various legal proceedings, claims, assessments, and other
contingencies arising in the ordinary course of business. The recognition and
measurement of provisions and contingent liabilities are significant areas of estimation
uncertainty that require management's subjective judgment.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the
entity and that are believed to be reasonable under circumstances.

Management believes that the change in outcome of estimates would not have a material

impact on the amounts disclosed in the financial statements.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2.5

Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

(a)

(b)

Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective

There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting
standards which are mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began
on July 1, 2024. However, these do not have any significant impact on the Company’s
financial reporting except for the following:

i) Amendment to IAS 1 - Non-current liabilities with covenants:

This amendment aims to improve the information an entity provides when its right
to deter settlement of liability is subject to compliance with covenants within twelve
months after the reporting period that affects the classification of a liability. These
amendments introduce additional disclosure requirements that enables users of
financial statements to understand the risk that the liability could become
repayable within twelve months of the reporting period. These amendments only
have an impact on the Company's disclosure of long-term borrowings, but
not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any item in these
financial statements.

Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following standards or amendments are not effective for the accounting periods
beginning on or after July 1, 2025 and have not been early adopted by the Company:

i) Amendment to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 - Classification and Measurement of Financial
Instruments (effective January 1, 2026):

These amendments

clarify the requirements for the timing of recognition and derecognition of
some financial assets and liabilities, with a new exception for some financial
liabilities settled through an electronic cash transfer system;

- clarify and add further guidance for assessing whether a financial asset meets
the solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) criterion;

- add new disclosures for certain instruments with contractual terms that can
change cashflows (such as some instruments with features linked to the
achievement of environment, social and governance (ESG) targets); and

- make updates to the disclosures for equity instruments designated at Fair
Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

i) IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements' (IFRS 18) (effective

January 1, 2027):

A new standard on presentation and disclosure in financial statements, with a focus

on updates to the statement of profit or loss is being introduced. The key new

concepts introduced in IFRS 18 relate to:

- the structure of the statement of profit or loss;

- required disclosures in the financial statements for certain profit or loss
performance measures that are reported outside an entity’s financial

statements (that is, management-defined performance measures); and

- enhanced principles on aggregation and disaggregation which apply to the

primary financial statements and notes in general.

Other than above, there are standards and certain amendments to accounting standards that
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company for the financial year
beginning on July 01, 2025. Such standards and amendments are not expected to have any

significant impact in the Company's financial reporting and, therefore, have not been presented

in these financial statements.

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set

out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

3.1 Property, plant and equipment
3.1.1 Operating assets

Initial recognition

The cost of an item of operating assets is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can

be measured reliably.

Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of operating assets ceases when the

item is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner

intended by the management.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Subsequent measurement

Operating assets (except leasehold land) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Leasehold land are stated at revalued amount less accumulated
impairment, if any. The costs of operating assets include:

(a) its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting
trade discounts and rebates;

(b) any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

(c) Borrowing costs, if any.
Revaluation

Revaluation of leasehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying
amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase in the
carrying amount of leasehold land is recognized in other comprehensive income and presented
as a separate component of equity as "Revaluation surplus on leasehold land" except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in the statement
of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged.

Any decrease that reverse previous increase of the same asset are first recognized in other
comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other
decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss. The revaluation reserve is not available for
distribution to the Company's shareholders.

The fair value of the Company's leasehold land is determined after a period of three years by an
independent professionally qualified valuer. However, fair value is re-assessed on a periodic
basis to check for any material impact.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to income using the straight-line method whereby the cost of an asset is
written off over its estimated useful life at the rates stated in note 4.1 to the financial
statements. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is put to use
and on disposals up to the month immediately preceding the disposal. Assets’ residual values
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of financial position
date.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Impairment

The carrying value of operating assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication

exists and where the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are

written down to their recoverable amount.

Repairs and maintenance

Expenditure incurred to replace a significant component of an item of property, plant and
equipment is capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is
capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will

flow to the Company and the cost of the items can be measured reliably. All other expenditure
(including repairs and normal maintenance) is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as an

expense when it is incurred.

Gains and losses on disposal

Gains and losses on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss, and the

related surplus on revaluation of leasehold land, if any, is transferred directly to retained

earnings.

3.1.2  Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress consists of expenditure incurred and advances made in respect of
tangible and intangible assets in the course of their construction and installation. Transfers are

made to relevant operating assets category as and when assets are available for use.

3.1.3  Major spare parts and stand-by equipment

Major spare parts and stand-by equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when the

Company expects to use them for more than one year. Transfers are made to relevant operating

assets category as and when such items are available for use.

3.2 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to

the asset will flow to the Company and that the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

Costs that are directly associated with identifiable software and have probable economic

benefits exceeding the cost beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets. Direct costs

include the purchase cost of software, implementation cost and related overhead cost.
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THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method over a period of three years or

license period, whichever is less.

The carrying value of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication
exists and where the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are

written down to their recoverable amount.
33 Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Initial Recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration given or received. These are subsequently measured at fair value or amortised

cost as the case may be.
Classification of financial assets
The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories:

- at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
- at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), or
- at amortised cost.

The Company determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The
classification of instruments (other than equity instruments) is driven by the Company’s business

model for managing the financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised

cost:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial

assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both

collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
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the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

Classification of financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:

at fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL”), or
at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured at

FVTPL (such as instruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Company has opted to
measure them at FVTPL.

Subsequent measurement

i)

i)

i)

Financial assets at FVTOCI

Elected investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income / (loss).

Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost

Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value, and
subsequently carried at amortised cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any
impairment.

Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the statement of profit or loss. Realised and unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities
held at FVTPL are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Where management has opted to recognise a financial liability at FVTPL, any changes
associated with the Company’s own credit risk will be recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Currently, there are no financial liabilities designated at FVTPL.
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Impairment of financial asset

The Company recognises loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost at an amount equal to life time ECLs except for the following, which
are measured at 12 months ECLs:

- bank balances for whom credit risk (the risk of default occurring over the expected life of
the financial instrument has not increased since the inception).

- employee receivables.

- other short term receivables that have not demonstrated any increase in credit risk since
inception.

Loss allowance for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to life time ECLs.
The Company considers a financial asset in default when it is more than 90 days past due.

Life time ECLs are the ECLs that results from all possible defaults events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. 12 months ECLs are that portion of ECL that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between cash flows due to the entity in
accordance with the contract and cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

Derecognition
i) Financial assets

The Company derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows
from the financial assets expire or when it transfers the financial assets and substantially
all the associated risks and rewards of ownership to another entity. On derecognition of a
financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
value and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in statement
of profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to statement of profit or loss. In contrast,
on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Company has elected
on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but
is transferred to statement of changes in equity.
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i) Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial
liabilities are discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the

statement of profit or loss.

Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if the Company has a legal right to set off the transaction and also intends

either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.4 Stores, spares and chemicals

Stores, spares and chemicals, except items in transit, are stated at moving average cost. Cost

comprises invoice value and other direct costs. Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete

items wherever necessary.

Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

3.5 Stock-in-trade

Stock of crude oil and condensate is valued at lower of cost, determined on a First-In-First-Out
(FIFO) basis and net realisable value. Crude oil in transit is valued at cost comprising invoice

value plus other charges incurred thereon.

Stocks of semi-finished and finished products are valued at lower of cost, determined on a FIFO
basis and net realisable value. Cost in relation to semi-finished and finished products represents

cost of crude oil and an appropriate portion of manufacturing overheads.

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less

costs necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

3.6 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional,
unless they contain significant financing components when they are recognised at fair
value. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less loss allowance. Refer note 3.3 for a description of the Company’s impairment policies.
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3.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at amortised cost.
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand,
balances with banks on current, savings and deposit accounts, short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less and short term borrowings repayable on demand,

which form an integral part of the Company's cash management.

3.8 Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates various post-employment schemes, including both defined benefit and

defined contribution plans.

3.8.1 Defined contribution plan

The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal
monthly contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees, to the fund at the
rate of 10% per annum of the basic salary. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions are

recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

3.8.2 Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans define an amount of pension or gratuity or medical benefit that an
employee will receive on or after retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as
age, years of service and compensation. A defined benefit plan is a plan that is not a defined
contribution plan. The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of
defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated

annually by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds or the market rates on
government bonds. These are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid,

and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related benefit obligation.

The Company operates the following schemes:

i) Funded pension scheme for permanent, regular and full time managerial and supervisory
staff of the Company who joined prior to January 01, 2012. Contributions are made to the
fund on the basis of actuarial valuation and are charged to income. The most recent
valuation of the scheme was carried out as at June 30, 2025, using the ‘Projected Unit

Credit Method’.
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i) Funded gratuity scheme for management employees of the Company joining on or after
January 1, 2012. Provision is made annually to cover obligations under the scheme, as per
actuarial valuation. The most recent valuation of the scheme was carried out as at June

30, 2025, using the ‘Projected Unit Credit Method’.

iii)  Funded gratuity scheme for non-management permanent employees of the Company.
Provision is made annually to cover obligations under the scheme, as per actuarial
valuation. The most recent valuation of the scheme was carried out as at June 30, 2025,

using the ‘Projected Unit Credit Method’.

iv)]  Funded medical scheme for management employees who joined the Company prior to
September 01, 2006. Provision is made annually to cover obligations under the scheme, by
way of a charge to income, calculated in accordance with the actuarial valuation. The most
recent valuation of the scheme was carried out as at June 30, 2025, using the ‘Projected

Unit Credit Method’.

The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the statement of financial
position immediately, with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in

which they occur.
Past-service costs are recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss.

3.9 Compensated absences

The Company accounts for compensated absences on the basis of unavailed leave balance of

each entitled employee at the end of the year.

Provisions are made to cover the obligations under the scheme on the basis of actuarial
valuation and are charged to income. The most recent valuation was carried out as at June 30,

2025 using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method'.

3.10 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables including amounts payable to related parties are carried
at amortised cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods

and services received.

3.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to

reflect the current best estimates.
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3.12 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past

events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or

more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has

a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,

or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
3.13 Taxation

3.13.1 Current

The charge for current taxation is based on the taxable income for the year, determined in

accordance with the prevailing law for taxation on income, using prevailing tax rates after taking

into account tax credits and rebates available, if any. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are

offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on

a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability.

3.13.2 Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method on all temporary differences arising
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. Deferred tax liability is generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent of availability of future taxable profits and

involve preparation of future cash flow projections that take into account significant estimates

and judgements about future margin and capacity utilisation against which the deductible

temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited in the statement of profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and
prevailing law for taxation on income that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax

asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

3.13.3 Levy

Minimum Taxes (i.e. the amount in excess of Company corporate income tax) which is not

adjustable against the future income tax liability, final tax and any tax charged under Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 which is not based on taxable income are classified as Levies in the statement

of profit or loss under the scope of IFRIC 21/IAS 37.
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3.14

3.15

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control over the products is
transferred to the customer, that is when the customer has the ability to control the use of the
transferred products provided and generally derive their remaining benefits and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer's acceptance of the product. It is measured
at the transaction price which the Company expects to be entitled to and represents the amount
of products supplied, after netting of discounts and value added taxes.

The performance obligation is satisfied and revenue is recognized as follows:

a) Local sales of products delivered through pipelines are recorded when products pass
through pipelines’ flange. Sale of products loaded through gantry is recognised when
products are loaded into tank lorries.

b) Export sales are recorded on the basis of products delivery at agreed delivery points.

The company operates under the import parity pricing formula, as modified from time to time,
whereby the company is allowed to charge product prices based to the ‘import parity’ price
calculated under the prescribed parameters. Accordingly, the transaction price of the
regulated products are determined in accordance with the directives issued by the Government
of Pakistan. Whereas, the sale prices of deregulated products are agreed under the contract
with customer.

No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term of 21 days,
which is consistent with the market practice.

Net revenue from products, which are sold at volume discount, is recognised net of such
discounts.

Other income
Sale of fixed assets is recognised as income when risk and rewards of ownership are transferred.
Profit from savings accounts is accounted for as income on accrual basis.

Rent income is accounted on straight line basis or in accordance with the terms of the
agreement.

Handling and storage income, pipeline charges, scrap sales, insurance rebate and rental income
are recognised when services are rendered.
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3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, if
any.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional /
contractual right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

Covenants that the Company is required to comply with, on or before the reporting date, are
considered in classifying relevant borrowing arrangements as current or non-current liabilities.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except
where such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset in which case such costs are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Functional currency and foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing on the
statement of financial position date. Exchange differences are taken to statement of profit or
loss currently.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker (CODM). The chief operating decision maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Previously, the fuel and lube
segments of the Company were organised and reviewed separately by the CODM, in
consideration of the requirements of the previous refining policies as given in note 19.2.
Subsequent to the supersession by the Brownfield policy of all the previous policies, the CODM
view the Company's operations as one operating segment considering that the sale of
Company’s petroleum products are subject to similar economic characteristics. Accordingly, the
management has determined that the company has a single reportable segment.
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3.20 Dividends and appropriation to general reserve

Dividends and appropriation to general reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the

period in which these are approved.

3.21 Lease liability and right-of-use asset

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease
based on whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis

and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which

the leased asset is available for use by the Company.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if

that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments include fixed payments or variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the
exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option,
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising
that option, less any lease incentives receivable. The extension and termination options are
incorporated in determination of lease term only when the Company is reasonably certain to

exercise these options.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change
in fixed lease payments or an index or rate, change in the Company's estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. The
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit and loss if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentive
received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight line method over the lease term as
this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain

remeasurements of the lease liability.
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The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient not to recognise right-of-use asset
and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. The lease payments associated with these leases is recognised as an
expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.

3.22 Change in accounting policy

During the year, the Company has reassessed and elected to change its accounting policy to
measure leasehold land (classified in property, plant and equipment) by using revaluation model.

In recent years, the market value of leasehold land has appreciated significantly due to various
economic developments. Under the historical cost model, the carrying amount of the Company’s
leasehold land no longer reflected its fair economic value, thereby understating the Company’s
asset base. Furthermore, this change promotes comparability with industry peers that have
adopted similar valuation methodologies, and strengthens the Company’s balance sheet, which
improves stakeholders' confidence. The revaluation was carried out by an independent
professionally qualified valuer by applying market-based valuation techniques to determine the
fair value of the leasehold land. In light of the above, the management believes that the new
policy provides reliable and more relevant information to the users of these financial
statements.

The change in accounting policy has been accounted for prospectively as stated as an exception
for retrospective accounting in case of change in policy from cost to revaluation model for the
first time under 'IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors'.

2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

- Operating assets - note 4.1 64,156,931 20,936,774

- Major spare parts and stand-by
equipment - note 4.2 1,617,793 793,821
- Capital work-in-progress - note 4.3 2,104,548 1,825,074
67,879,272 23,555,669

90 National Refinery Limited - Annual Report 2025



NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

4.1

411

Operating assets

Year ended June 30, 2025

Opening net book value

Additions

Revaluation surplus

Transfers from capital
work in progress

Disposals
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Written off
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation charge - note 4.1.8
Closing net book value
As at June 30, 2025
Cost / revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value
Year ended June 30, 2024
Opening net book value
Additions
Transfers from capital work in progress
Disposals
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Written off
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation charge - note 4.1.8
Closing net book value
As at June 30, 2024

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Annual Rate of
Depreciation %
Useful life (in years)

Leasehold Buildings on Right-of-use Plant and Vehicles Furniture ~ Computers and Office and Total
land leasehold asset machinery and fixtures  other related other
(note 4.1.1 to land (note 4.1.5) (note 4.1.7) accessories equipment
4.13)
(Rupees in thousand)
40,065 453,820 103,433 19,851,656 46,792 13,781 10,172 417,055 20,936,774
- - 1,249 195 4,535 3,775 9,754
46,134,419 = - - 46,134,419
- 18,249 487,670 185 4,954 76,075 587,133
= (2,507) 5 (690) (3,197)
- 2,360 - 690 3,050
- (147) - - - (147)
- - (705) - (442) (1,147)
= 705 - 232 937
- = . = - - - (210) (210)
(595) (42,698) (17,239) (3,332,223) (11,983) (1,949) (6,170) (97,935) (3,510,792)
46,173,889 429,371 86,194 17,007,103 35,911 12,212 13,491 398,760 64,156,931
46,173,889 1,080,190 189,627 50,082,161 197,949 38,405 106,962 1,740,785 99,609,968
= (650,819) (103,433)  (33,075,058)  (162,038) (26,193) (93,471)  (1,342,025) (35,453,037)
46,173,889 429,371 86,194 17,007,103 35,911 12,212 13,491 398,760 64,156,931
40,661 486,067 120,671 22,275,618 46,379 13,541 5,891 474,420 23,463,248
= - 19,208 1,196 7,080 17,950 45,434
13,732 929,584 976 2,203 25,258 971,753
= = (18,070) = = (18,070)
- - 17,322 - - 17,322
o - (748) - - (748)
= (78,239) 5 = = (78,239)
20,873 - - - 20,873
o (57,366) = o 2 (57,366)
(596) (45,979) (17,238) (3,296,180) (18,047) (1,932) (5,002) (100,573) (3,485,547)
40,065 453,820 103,433 19,851,656 46,792 13,781 10,172 417,055 20,936,774
60,035 1,061,941 189,627 49,594,491 199,207 38,025 97,473 1,662,067 52,902,866
(19,970) (608,121) (86,194) (29,742,835)  (152,415) (24,244) (87,301)  (1,245,012) (31,966,092)
40,065 453,820 103,433 19,851,656 46,792 13,781 10,172 417,055 20,936,774
1 5t020 9.09 5t033.33 20 71t033.33 10t033.33 5to 50
100 10to 20 11 3t020 5 8to 15 3t06.5 2t020

Leasehold land includes land sub-leased to Anoud Power Generation Limited and licensed to the

following licensees:

Pak-Hy Oils (Private) Limited *
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited *
PERAC Research & Development Foundation *
Petroleum Packages (Private) Limited *
Pakistan Qilfields Limited
Attock Petroleum Limited

The carrying value of each of the above is immaterial.

* License period of these licensees has expired and the Company has initiated the necessary

course to recover the possession of land.
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4.1.2

4.13

4.1.4

4.15

4.1.6

4.1.7

Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Company are as
follows:

Location Usage of immovable Total Area
property (In acres)

Plot No. 7B, 7D, 7E and other adjacent plots, Refining complex and 275
Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi related facility

Leasehold land measuring 275 acres located at Plot No. 7B, 7D, 7E and other adjacent plots,
Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi, where the Refinery is situated, was revalued at
Rs. 46.17 billion, resulting in a surplus of Rs. 46.13 billion over the carrying amount before
revaluation which has been credited to other comprehensive income and is shown as
"Revaluation surplus on leasehold land". The value was determined by an independent valuer
M/s. AXA Surveyors Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd. ("the valuer") on June 30, 2025 on the basis of present
market value keeping in view that the land is leasehold and to be used for the petroleum
industry / oil refinery purpose. The forced sales value has been determined by the independent
valuer at Rs. 32.32 billion.

The surplus on revaluation is not available for distribution to the shareholders in accordance
with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

The carrying amount of the aforementioned asset as at June 30, 2025, if the said asset had been
carried at historical cost, would have been as follows:

2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)

Cost 60,035 60,035
Accumulated depreciation (20,565) (19,970)

Net book value 39,470 40,065

The cost of operating assets includes assets amounting to Rs. 9,576.98 million
(2024: Rs. 8,620.03 million) with nil book value.

The right-of-use asset comprise a leasehold land at oil installation area, Keamari of
Karachi Port Trust (KPT), used by the Company for its operations.

In the current year variable lease for right-of-use assets amounted to Rs. 4 million
(2024: Rs. 5.72 million).

Plant and machinery includes oil terminal, processing plant and storage tanks, power
generation plants, pipelines, water, power and other utilities.
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4.1.8 The break up of depreciation charge for the year is as follows:
Note 2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
Cost of sales 31 3,459,352 3,424,135
Distribution cost 32 1,302 3,421
Administrative expenses 33 50,138 57,991
3,510,792 3,485,547
2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
4.2 Major spare parts and stand-by equipment
Net carrying value
Balance at beginning of the year 878,473 677,171
Additions during the year 1,220,110 709,811
Transfers made during the year (398,308) (508,509)
1,700,275 878,473
Provision for impairment - note 4.2.1 (82,482) (84,652)
Balance at end of the year 1,617,793 793,821
4.2.1 During the year, net reversal of provision amounting to Rs. 2.17 million (2024: Rs. 3.75 million)
has been made.
4.3 Capital work-in-progress
Balanceas  Additions Balance as Balanceas  Additions Balance as
atJulyl, duringthe Transfers atJune 30, atJulyl,  during the Transfers at June 30,
2024 year 2025 2023 year 2024
< (Rupees in thousand) >
Buildings on leasehold land 26,139 17,749 (18,249) 25,639 10,377 24,644 (8,882) 26,139
el Reizeaion 971,735 971,735 970,358 1,377 971,735
projects
Plant and machinery 608,759 716,293  (487,670) 837,382 371,559 1,132,101  (894,901) 608,759
Office and other equipments 104,462 88,676 (81,214) 111,924 78,901 93,531 (67,970) 104,462
1,711,095 822,718  (587,133) 1,946,680 1,431,195 1,251,653  (971,753) 1,711,095
Advances to contractors /
suppliers 113,979 58231 (14342) 157,868 112,688 115331  (114,040) 113,979
1,825074 880,949  (601,475) 2,104,548 1,543,883 1,366,984 (1,085793) 1,825,074
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2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Operating intangible assets - note 5.1 2,153 2,865
Capital work in progress (CWIP) 1,050 1,050
3,203 3,915
5.1 Operating intangible assets - computer softwares
Net carrying value
Balance at beginning of the year 2,865 2,094
Additions during the year 769 3,884
Amortisation for the year - note 5.3 (1,481) (3,2113)
Balance at end of the year 2,153 2,865
Gross carrying value
Cost 368,127 367,358
Accumulated amortisation (365,974) (364,493)
Net book value 2,153 2,865
Amortisation rate (per annum) 33.33% 33.33%
SW The cost of intangible assets include assets amounting to Rs. 363.23 million
(2024: Rs. 362.54 million) with nil book value.
5.3 The break up of amortisation charge for the year is as follows:
2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
Cost of sales - note 31 1,394 2,892
Administrative expenses - note 33 87 221
1,481 3,113
6. LONG-TERM INVESTMENT
Fair value through OCI
Anoud Power Generation Limited
[1,080,000 (2024: 1,080,000) Ordinary shares of
Rs.10 each, Equity held 9.09 percent
(2024: 9.09 percent)] 14,123 14,822

The above investment was revalued by an independent valuer - M/s JS Global Capital Limited
on June 30, 2025 based on the discounted cash flow analysis.

94 National Refinery Limited - Annual Report 2025



NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

7.1

7.2

7.3

The following table presents the movement in level 3 item for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Unlisted equity security

2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)

Balance at the beginning of the year 14,822 14,555
Gain / (loss) recognised during the year (699) 267
Balance at the end of the year 14,123 14,822

LONG-TERM LOANS
Loans - considered good

Secured - note 7.1

Loans to employees 15,564 26,926
Less: Recoverable within one year - note 13 (3,727) (7,173)
11,837 19,753

Unsecured - note 7.2

Loans to employees 1,013 701
Less: Recoverable within one year - note 13 (259) (174)
754 527

12,591 20,280

The secured loans to employees are for the purchase of motor cars and house building. These
are granted in accordance with the terms of their employment and are recoverable in monthly
installments over a period ranging between 5 to 10 years (2024: 5 to 10 years). Out of these,
car loans amounting to Rs. 1.2 million (2024: Rs. 2.53 million) carry interest ranging from 3% to
7% (2024: 3% to 7%) per annum. These loans are secured against original title documents of
respective assets.

The unsecured loans to employees are either personal loans or given for the purchase of
furniture and motor cycles. These are granted in accordance with the terms of their
employment and are recoverable in monthly installments over a period of 4 to 12
(2024: 4 to 12) years and are interest free.

Long term loans have been carried at cost as the effect of carrying these balances at amortised
cost would not be material in the overall context of these financial statements.
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2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
8. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS
Utilities 14,216 14,216
Others 16,049 16,049
30,265 30,265
8.1 These deposits do not carry any mark up arrangement.
9. DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred tax asset 19,098,385 14,801,203
Deferred tax liability (3,214,216) (3,869,820)
15,884,169 10,931,383
Accelerated  Right-of-use  Provision  Provision  Provision Provision for Minimum Alternate  Tax loss Total
tax asset net of for duties  for slow for old doubtful debt, tax corporate
depreciation lease liability andtaxes moving outstanding dO_UbﬁUI tax
and -IFRS 16 and liabilities receivables,
amortisation obsolete  offered for .staff
retirement
stores, tax )
4 benefits,
spares pending
and litigation and
chemicals others
(Rupees in thousand)
July 01, 2024 (3,869,820) 21,413 19,112 141,855 134,083 209,993 1,425,048 - 12,849,699 10,931,383
Credit / (charge) to
statement of profit or
loss and statement of
comprehensive
income for the year 655,604 1,099 - (3,944) - 28,269 1,332,232 - 2,939,526 4,952,786
June 30, 2025 (3,214,216) 22,512 19,112 137,911 134,083 238,262 2,757,280 - 15,789,225 15,884,169
July 01, 2023 (3,995,696) 17,397 17,474 140,881 18,903 164,526 1,866,523 354,693 8,327,178 6,911,879
Credit / (charge) to
statement of profit or
loss and statement of
comprehensive
income for the year 125,876 4,016 1,638 974 115,180 45,467 (441,475) (354,693) 4,522,521 4,019,504
June 30, 2024 (3,869,820) 21,413 19,112 141,855 134,083 209,993 1,425,048 - 12,849,699 10,931,383
9.1 The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax in the same

jurisdiction, and the law allows net settlement. Therefore, they have been offset in the
statement of financial position.
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9.2

9.3

10.

10.1

During the year, deferred tax asset has been recognised on unused tax losses, unabsorbed
tax depreciation and minimum tax amounting to Rs. 14.74 billion (2024: Rs. 9.27 billion),
Rs. 1.85 billion (2024: Rs. 3.57 billion) and Rs. 1.33 billion (2024: Rs. 1.43 billion) respectively, in
view of future estimated taxable profits required to recover the benefit. Deferred tax asset on
minimum tax and unused tax losses will lapse after 3 and 6 years of occurrence of the losses
respectively, however deferred tax on loss of unabsorbed depreciation will be available for
indefinite period.

The Company has not recognised deferred tax asset of Rs. 2.05 billion (2024: Rs. 2.22 billion) in
respect of the below deductible temporay differences as their recoverability is dependent on
the improved profitability of the Company.

2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
Debit/ (credit) balance arising in respect of:

Minimum tax 1,864,843 1,864,843
Alternative corporate tax 181,447 354,693
Unrecognised deferred tax asset 2,046,290 2,219,536

Under the Finance Act, 2019, corporate rate of tax has been fixed at 29% for tax year 2020 and
onwards. In addition, as per Finance Act, 2023, companies are liable to pay super tax at the
rate of upto 10% for the tax year 2023 and onwards. Accordingly, deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been recognised using the expected applicable rate.

2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
STORES, SPARES AND CHEMICALS

In hand
- Stores 92,037 88,461
- Spares 1,649,051 1,594,034
- Chemicals 389,126 353,416
2,130,214 2,035,911
In transit 178,116 45,573
2,308,330 2,081,484
Provision for net realisable value
write down - note 10.1 (271,137) (279,079)
2,037,193 1,802,405

The Company made a reversal of provision for net realisable value of slow moving and obsolete
stores, spares and chemicals of Rs. 7.942 million (2024: Rs. 15.65 million).
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10.2 These are subject to ranking charge against Company's short term running finance and
financing under Islamic arrangement.
2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
11. STOCK-IN-TRADE
Crude oil and condensate [including in transit
Rs. 3.68 billion (2024: Rs. 0.15 billion)] - note 11.1 13,301,872 18,393,630
Semi-finished products - note 11.2 8,413,551 9,435,346
Finished products - note 11.3 7,726,219 21,890,887
29,441,642 49,719,863
T 1o As at June 30, 2025, stock of crude oil and condensate has been written down by Rs. Nil
(2024: Rs. 294.18 million) to arrive at its net realisable value of Rs. Nil
(2024: Rs. 18,239.97 million).
11.2 As at June 30, 2025, stock of semi-finished products has been written down by Rs. Nil
(2024: Rs. 397.89 million) to arrive at its net realisable value of Rs. Nil
(2024: Rs. 3,673.80 million).
11.3 As at June 30, 2025, stock of finished products has been written down by Rs. 157.31 million
(2024: Rs. 784.01 million) to arrive at its net realisable value of Rs. 2,173.96 million
(2024: Rs. 10,984.30 million).
11.4 These are subject to ranking charge against Company's short term running finance and
financing under Islamic arrangement.
2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
12. TRADE RECEIVABLES - unsecured
Considered good
- Related party - Attock Petroleum
Limited - notes 12.1 & 12.2 6,262,342 5,032,807
- Others - note 12.3 11,497,153 4,822,562
Considered doubtful 7,832 7,832
17,767,327 9,863,201
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (7,832) (7,832)
17,759,495 9,855,369
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12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

13.

13.1

13.1.1

There are no trade receivable from related party that are past due or impaired.

The maximum aggregate amount due from the related party at the end of any month during
the year was Rs. 8,989.24 million (2024: Rs. 9,732.22 million).

The trade receivables that are past due but not impaired is Rs. 0.03 million
(2024: Rs. 0.03 million).

These are subject to ranking charge against Company's short term running finance and
financing under Islamic arrangement.

2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loans - considered good

Current portion of long term loans - note 7

Secured

- Employees 3,727 7,173
Unsecured

- Employees 259 174

Short term loans to employees - unsecured
and interest free 357 861

Advances - note 13.1

- Employees 16,540 11,649
- Suppliers - note 13.1.1 95,250 84,717
111,790 96,366
116,133 104,574

These advances do not carry any mark up arrangement.

These include advances to foreign suppliers against purchases of stores and various other items
amounting to Rs. 89.65 million (2024: Rs. 55.63 million).
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2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)

14. TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS
Deposits - note 14.1 12,299 12,399
Prepayments

- Insurance 213 180
- Others 21,979 43,059
22,192 43,239
34,491 55,638

14.1 These deposits do not carry any mark up arrangement.

Note 2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
15. OTHER RECEIVABLES - considered good
Receivable from related parties 15.1
- Attock Petroleum Limited 17,430 13,926
- The Attock Oil Company Limited 10 3
- Pakistan Qilfields Limited 92 120
- Attock Refinery Limited 20 72
Others:
- Government of Pakistan 15.2 232,809 232,809
- Sales tax receivable 15.3 567,691 567,691
- Additional tax claimed by
Federal Board of Revenue 15.4 251,625 251,625
- Custom duty receivable 15.5 6,602,789 1,813,265
- Sales tax reimbursement from IFEM 15.6 3,723,124 =
- Various 1,130,717 63,997
12,526,307 2,943,508

15.1 The maximum aggregate amount due from related parties at the end of any month during the
year was Rs. 23.21 million (2024: Rs. 32.29 million).

15.2 This represents Price Differential Claims (PDC) receivable from Government of Pakistan. On
behalf of oil refineries, Oil Companies Advisory Committee (OCAC) has presented the claims
before the Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Resources (MoPNR). In 2018, the Company received
a report on PDC from Ministry of Energy - Petroleum Division through OCAC. The management
believes that such receivable is good and no provision has been made there against.
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15.3

154

15.5

15.6

This represents receivable on account of sales tax paid to the Federal Board of Revenue
amounting to Rs. 567.69 million (2024: Rs. 567.69 million) in respect of sales tax demand
received for the periods July 2013 to June 2014, July 2015 to June 2016 and June to September
2016. These cases were remanded back by Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIRA). The
CIRA in remand back proceedings has decided the cases in favour of the Company for the total
amount of Rs. 552.99 million. However, the Company has filed appeals with the Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against orders of CIRA on certain points which were not decided
in favour of the Company. There is no development during the year in this matter.

This represents amount paid against the order of demand for monitoring of withholding taxes for
tax years 2014 and 2016. For tax year 2014, the case has been remanded back by Commissioner
Inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIRA), and remand back proceedings have decided the case in favour
of the Company . Whereas, for tax year 2016, the Company had filed an appeal before the CIRA
against the order passed in remand back proceedings, the said appeal has been decided in the
Company's favour vide order dated 19 June 2023.

This represents differential of custom duty paid on import of crude oil and custom duty
recovered through sale of High Speed Diesel and Motor Gasoline (as built in the prices notified by
OGRA).

In the year 2015, the Government of Pakistan (GOP) imposed custom duty on crude oil which
placed an additional cost burden on crude oil importing refineries. To alleviate some of the
effects of the customs duty imposition, since crude oil processing yields both regulated and
de-regulated petroleum products, the Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division) (MEPD), in
November 2017, allowed refineries to adjust the custom duty on crude oil (regulated products’
portion) with the duty recovered from sale of products (2.5% on High Speed Diesel and 10% on
Motor Gasoline) and the net amount was recorded as receivable/payable as per the OGRA
approved mechanism. Whereas the portion of customs duty on crude oil attributable to
deregulated products was to be borne by refineries. Upto February 22, 2024, the differential has
been worked out in accordance with the aforementioned mechanism.

However, post notification of Brownfield policy, the total custom duty on crude oil is recorded as
receivable from IFEM in accordance with clause 6.1.2.1 of the Brownfield policy, net off with the
amount recovered from sale of products (2.5% on High Speed Diesel and 10% on Motor
Gasoline) which is payable to IFEM pool till the time an OGRA controlled joint escrow account is
maintained under the Brownfield policy.

This represents input tax related to exempt supplies amounting to Rs. 1.64 billion and output tax
on own consumption attributable to exempt sales amounting to Rs. 2.08 billion which is to be
reimbursed through IFEM as per the approved mechanism notified by OGRA.
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In the Finance Act, 2024, the status of certain petroleum products (i.e., Motor Gasoline, High
Speed Diesel, Kerosene and Light Diesel Qil) has been changed from 'taxable supplies' (with zero
rating) to ‘exempt’ under the Sales Tax Act, 1990, resulting in increase in company’s operating
cost due to the disallowance of input tax and output tax applicable on own consumption
attributable to exempt supplies. In this connection, OGRA has notified a mechanism of recovery
of the disallowed input tax pertaining to the fiscal year 2024-25 through IFEM. Accordingly, the
Company has submitted the aforementioned claims to the relevant authority for their

settlement.
16. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
This represents investment in Government Treasury Bills bearing markup of 12.93% per annum
(2024: Nil %) maturing on October 31, 2025.
2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
17. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash at bank
Conventional
Current accounts 294,649 58,310
Savings accounts - note 17.1 17,683 15,334
Deposit accounts - notes 17.1 and 17.2 351,829 490,063
664,161 563,707
Islamic
Current accounts 15,256 116
Savings accounts - note 17.1 23 37
15,279 153
Cash in hand 500 500
679,940 564,360
17.1 These carry interest rates ranging from 7% to 19% (2024: 11.5% to 20.5%) per annum.
17.2 These represent Term Deposit Receipts as bank guarantees under lien issued on behalf of the
Company.
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18. SHARE CAPITAL
Number of shares

Authorised share capital

2025

2024

(Rupees in thousand)

100,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
59,450,417 Ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash 594,504 594,504
6,469,963 Ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each issued for
consideration other than cash 64,700 64,700
Ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each issued as fully
14,046,180 paid bonus shares 140,462 140,462
79,966,560 799,666 799,666
18.1 All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. Holders of these

shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per

share at general meetings of the Company.

18.2 As at June 30, 2025 and 2024 Attock Group holds 51% equity stake in the Company through the

following Companies:

2025 2024
(Number of shares)
- Attock Refinery Limited 19,991,640 19,991,640
- Pakistan Oilfields Limited 19,991,640 19,991,640
- Attock Petroleum Limited 799,665 799,665
Note 2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
19. RESERVES
Capital reserves
Capital compensation reserve 19.1 10,142 10,142
Exchange equalisation reserve 4,117 4,117
Utilised special reserve 19.2 9,631,914 9,631,914
9,646,173 9,646,173
Revenue reserves
General reserve 31,961,000 31,961,000
Revaluation of investment at fair value through OCI 14,123 14,822
Accumulated loss (38,239,000) (23,205,106)
(6,263,877) 8,770,716
3,382,296 18,416,889
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19.1

19.2

20.

Capital compensation reserve includes net amounts for (a) premature termination of crude oil
sales, bareboat charter-party and technical assistance agreements, (b) design defects and
terminated service agreements and (c) termination of bareboat charter-party and affreightment
agreements.

This represents amounts utilised out of the Special Reserve for upgradation and expansion of the
refinery.

As per the Import Parity Pricing (IPP) formula, effective July 1, 2002, certain refineries including
the Company have been directed to transfer from their net profit after tax for the year from fuel
refinery operations, an amount in excess of 50% of the paid-up share capital, as on July 1, 2002
attributable to fuel segment, to Special Reserve to offset against any future losses or to make
investment for expansion or upgradation.

During 2013, Government of Pakistan issued a policy framework for upgradation and expansion
of refinery projects which interalia states that "till the completion of the projects, refineries will
not be allowed to offset losses, if any, for the year ended June 30, 2013 or subsequent years
against the amount of profit above 50% accumulated or to be accumulated in the special
reserves account as per pricing formula.

In August 2023, the Government of Pakistan notified the Brownfield policy. This Policy
supersedes all previous Refining Policies. Thus, the requirement to transfer the amount of
profit above 50% of paid-up capital as at July 1, 2002 into Special Reserve Account is no more
required.

LONG-TERM BORROWING

This represents medium-term loan facility obtained for three years (including one year grace
period) from a conventional bank amounting to Rs. 15 billion (June 30, 2024: Nil). The rate of
mark-up applicable on this loan is based on three months KIBOR plus 0.15%
(June 30, 2024: Nil %) per annum. This facility is secured against fixed charge on Company's
selected plant & machinery.

In respect of the above long-term borrowing, the Company is required to comply with certain
covenants on its long-term borrowing, after the end of each reporting period. These covenants
require the Company to have a specified amount of local and export proceeds routed through
the Bank counters. These covenants do not affect the classification of borrowing at reporting
date.
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21.

211

21.2

21.3

22.

221

2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
LEASE LIABILITY

Lease liabilities under IFRS 16 - notes 21.1 & 21.2 143,916 158,338
Non Current portion 125,646 143,916
Current portion 18,270 14,422
Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
2025 2024
Minimum  Interest  Present Minimum Interest Present
lease value lease value
payments of payments of
minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments
< (Rupees in thousands) >
Less than one year 38,418 (20,148) 18,270 36,589  (22,167) 14,422
Between one and five years 173,869 (48,223) 125,646 212,287  (68,371) 143,916
212,287 (68,371) 143,916 248,876  (90,538) 158,338

Following is the carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movement during the year:

2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)

Balance at the beginning of the year 158,338 169,460
Interest expense 19,539 23,724
Payments (33,961) (34,846)
Balance at the end of the year 143,916 158,338

The lease liability was measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate of 14%.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS / (PREPAYMENTS)

The Company operates approved funded pension scheme for permanent management staff
who joined prior to January 01, 2012, approved funded gratuity scheme for permanent
management employees who joined the Company on or after January 01, 2012, approved
funded gratuity scheme for permanent non-management employees and approved funded
medical scheme for management employees of the Company who joined prior to September
01, 2006. Actuarial valuation of these plans is carried out every year and the latest actuarial
valuation was carried out as at June 30, 2025 using the ‘Projected Unit Credit Method’.
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22.2 Plan assets held in trust are governed by local regulations which mainly include the Sindh Trust
Act, 2020; the Companies Act, 2017; Income Tax Rules, 2002 and the Rules under the trust
deeds. Responsibility for governance of the Plans, including investment decisions, lies with the
Boards of Trustees. The Company appoints the trustees and all trustees are employees of the
Company.

22.3 Risks on account of defined benefit plan.

The Company faces the following risks on account of defined benefit plan:

Final salary risk - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than
what the Company has assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit
amount would also increase proportionately.

Investment risks - The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to
meet the liabilities. This risk is mitigated by closely monitoring the performance of investment

22.4 The latest actuarial valuation of the Plans as at June 30, 2025 was carried out using the
Projected Unit Credit Method. Details of the Funds as per the actuarial valuation are as
follows:

2025 2024
Pension Medical Non - Managemen Pension Medical Non - Management
fund fund managemen t gratuity fund fund management gratuity
t gratuity fund gratuity fund
fund fund
< (Rupees in tk i) >
22.4.1 Balance sheet reconciliation
Present value of defined benefit obligation
atJune 30 - note 22.4.2 6,288,528 2,344,031 263,836 126,488 5,698,349 2,054,088 255,590 131,562
Fair value of plan assets at June 30
-note 22.4.3 (7,006,187) (1,692,287) (172,746) (126,097) (6,455,675) (1,603,466) (171,234) (118,828)
(Surplus) / deficit (717,659) 651,744 91,090 391 (757,326) 450,622 84,356 12,734
22.4.2 Movement in the present value of
defined benefit obligation
Balance at July 1 5,698,349 2,054,088 255,589 131,562 5,173,423 1,860,986 216,976 101,071
Benefits paid by the plan (529,653) (162,460) (7,879) (11,527) (441,059) (115,979) a (14,325)
Current service cost 55,446 12,055 4,151 20,964 44,792 12,199 4,195 17,990
Interest cost 799,635 296,467 36,721 20,374 800,024 296,289 34,915 17,625
Transfers 20,544 - (20,544) - 33,218 - (33,218)
Remeasurement on obligation 244,207 143,881 (4,202) (34,885) 87,951 593 32,722 9,201
Balance at June 30 6,288,528 2,344,031 263,836 126,438 5,698,349 2,054,088 255,590 131,562
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2025 2024
Pension Medical Non - Managemen Pension Medical Non - Management
fund fund managemen t gratuity fund fund management gratuity
t gratuity fund gratuity fund
fund fund
<« (Rupees in thousand) >
22.4.3 Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Balance at July 1 6,455,675 1,603,466 171,234 118,828 5,575,474 1,395,546 158,288 108,807
Contributions paid into the plan - 8,283 12,423 -
Transfers 20,544 - (20,544) 33,218 - (33,218) -
Benefits paid by the plan (529,653) (162,460) (7,879) (11,527) (441,059) (115,979) . (14,325)
Interest income 903,915 230,532 24,821 18,609 857,592 221,042 25,924 18,792
Remeasurement on plan assets 155,706 20,749 5114 187 430,450 94,574 7,817 5,554
Balance at June 30 7,006,187 1,692,287 172,746 126,097 6,455,675 1,603,466 171,234 118,828
22.4.4 (Income) / expense recognised in the
statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 55,446 12,055 4,151 20,964 44,792 12,199 4,195 17,990
Net interest (income) / cost (104,280) 65,935 11,900 1,765 (57,568) 75,247 8,991 (1,167)
(Income) / expense recognised in
statement of profit or loss (48,834) 77,990 16,051 22,729 (12,776) 87,446 13,186 16,823
2245 Remeasurement recognised
in Other Comprehensive Income or loss
(Gain) / loss from changes in
financial assumptions 427,975 (14,100) 12,834 (16,151) (30,085) (10,169) 11,627 5,635
Gain due to changes in
demographic assumptions - - - (6,183)
(Gain) / loss due to changes in
experience adjustments (183,768) 157,981 (17,036) (18,734) 118,036 10,762 21,095 9,749
Gain on remeasurement of fair value
of plan assets (155,706) (20,749) (5,114) (187) (430,450) (94,574) (7,817) (5,554)
Remeasurements 88,501 123,132 (9,316) (35,072) (342,499) (93,981) 24,905 3,647
22.4.6 Net recognised liability / (asset)
Net liability / (asset) at the beginning
of the year (757,326) 450,622 84,355 12,734 (402,051) 465,440 58,687 (7,736)
(Income) / expense recognised in profit
and loss account (48,834) 77,990 16,051 22,729 (12,776) 87,446 13,186 16,823
Contribution made to the fund during the year - (8,283) (12,423) -
Remeasurements recognised in
other comprehensive income or loss 88,501 123,132 (9,316) (35,072) (342,499) (93,981) 24,905 3,647
Recognised liability / (asset)
as at end of the year (717,659) 651,744 91,090 391 (757,326) 450,622 84,355 12,734
2247 Analysis of present value
of defined benefit obligation
Vested/Non-Vested
Vested benefits 6,288,528 2,326,788 263,836 109,976 5,698,350 2,016,349 255,589 109,296
Non-Vested benefits 17,243 16,512 37,738 - 22,265
Total 6,288,528 2,344,031 263,836 126,488 5,698,350 2,054,087 255,589 131,561
Present value of defined benefit
obligation by type of employee:
Active 2,379,624 374,288 2,355,881 353,344 ° o
Retiree 3,908,904 1,969,743 3,342,468 1,507,642 o o
6,288,528 2,344,031 5,698,349 1,860,986 o o
Type of benefits earned to date
Accumulated benefit obligation 5,580,893 2,223,729 150,467 52,128 4,899,285 1,914,372 135,790 43,402
Amounts attributed to future salary
increases 707,635 120,302 113,369 74,360 799,064 139,715 119,799 88,159
6,288,528 2,344,031 263,836 126,488 5,698,349 2,054,087 255,589 131,561
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22.4.8 Major categories / composition of
plan assets are as follows:
Pension fund Medical fund Non - management Management
gratuity fund gratuity fund
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Debt instruments 84.18% 94.97% 99.88% 92.08% 93.22% 96.76% 94.82% 86.57%
Equity - listed 2.03% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 2.44% 0.00% 0.00%
Mutual funds 12.95% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 3.95% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Others 0.84% 5.03% 0.12% 7.92% 2.83% 0.79% 5.18% 13.43%
22.4.9 Composition of fair value of
plan assets are as follows:
Pension fund Medical fund Non - management Management
gratuity fund gratuity fund
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Debt instruments 5,897,882 6,130,778 1,690,290 1,476,405 161,036 165,692 119,561 102,871
Equity - Listed 142,205 S = = - 4,186 - -
Others 966,102 324,897 1,998 127,062 11,711 1,356 6,535 15,957
7,006,189 6,455,675 1,692,288 1,603,467 172,747 171,234 126,096 118,828
22410 Actuarial Assumptions
Pension fund Medical fund Non - management Management
gratuity fund gratuity fund
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Discount rate at June 30 11.75% 14.75% 12.50% 14.75% 11.75% 14.75% 12.50% 14.75%
Future salary increases /
increase in cost
- First year following the valuation 9.75% 9.75% 10.50% 12.75% 9.75% 9.75% 9.75% 9.75%
- Second year following the valuation 9.75% 9.75% 10.50% 12.75% 9.75% 9.75% 9.75% 9.75%
- Third year following the valuation 9.75% 9.75% 10.50% 12.75% 9.75% 9.75% 9.75% 9.75%
- Long term increase 9.75% 12.75% 10.50% 12.75% 11.50% 13.75% 10.00% 13.75%
Expected rate of increase in pension 7.40% 8.95% - o 3 -
Expected retirement age 60 years 60 years 60 years 60 years 60 years 60 years 60 years 60 years
22 4.11 Maturity profile of the
defined benefit obligation
Pension fund Medical fund Non - management Management
gratuity fund gratuity fund
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Distribution of timing of benefit payments
One year 683,916 629,366 123,477 1,945,638 15,187 17,886 7,835 7,356
Two years 662,137 746,702 139,225 2,172,746 19,960 33,218 12,681 8,800
Three years 709,039 678,855 155,503 2,061,713 24,844 21,140 9,503 14,071
Four years 713,005 740,450 172,276 2,046,668 22,877 27,056 14,091 12,151
Five years 743,751 751,851 189,839 2,167,145 48,521 25,436 14,024 16,104
Six years and onwards 4,666,059 4,924,778 1,259,808 1,949,529 356,321 410,177 146,999 176,631
Mortality was assumed to be SLIC (2001-05) table.
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22.5

22.6

22.7

In case of the funded plans, the Company ensures that the investment positions are managed
within an asset-liability matching (ALM) framework that has been developed to achieve long-
term investments that are in line with the obligations under the retirement benefit plan. Within
this framework, the Company’s ALM objective is to match assets to the retirement benefit
obligations by investing in long-term fixed interest securities with maturities that match the
benefit payments as they fall due and in the appropriate currency. The Company actively
monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching the
expected cash outflows arising from the retirement benefit plan obligations. The Company has
not changed the processes used to manage its risks from previous periods. The Company does
not use derivatives to manage its risk. Investments are well diversified, such that the failure of
any single investment would not have a material impact on the overall level of assets. A large
portion of assets in 2025 consists of government securities. The Company believes that
government securities offer the best returns over the long term with an acceptable level of risk.

The expected return on plan assets has been determined by considering the expected returns
available on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed
interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the statement of financial
position date.

The Company's contributions to gratuity, pension and medical benefit funds in 2026 is expected
to amount to Rs. 119.94 million.

The actuary conducts separate valuations for calculating contribution rates. The Company
contributes to the pension, gratuity and medical benefit funds appropriately.

Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal

assumptions is:
Impact on defined benefit

obligation
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption

Rupees in thousand

Discount rate at June 30 0.5% (402,991) 437,572

Future salary increases 0.5% 50,710 (48,916)

Future pension increases 0.5% 233,975 (218,453)

Future medical increases 0.5% 7,483 (7,297)
(Pre-retirement)

Future medical increases 0.5% 129,191 (119,448)

(Post-retirement)

If longevity increases by 1 year, the resultant increase in obligation is insignificant.
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The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the
assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined
benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period) has been applied as and when calculating the gratuity, pension and medical benefit
liability recognised within the statement of financial position of the Company.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change
as compared to the previous year.

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021

(Rupees in thousand)

v

A

22.8 Historical information

Pension fund

Present value of defined

benefit obligation 6,288,528 5,698,349 5,173,423 5,017,745 4,948,236
Fair value of plan assets (7,006,187) (6,455,675) (5,575,474) (5,037,583) (4,940,243)
(Surplus) / defecit in the plan (717,659) (757,326) (402,051) (19,838) 7,993

Remeasurement recognised
in other comprehensive

income or loss
(Gain) / loss on obligation 244,207 87,951 (138,423) (21,107) 50,168

(Loss) / gain on plan assets 155,706 430,450 247,995 23,252 76,981

Medical Benefit

Present value of defined

benefit obligation 2,344,031 2,054,088 1,860,986 1,658,374 1,503,143
Fair value of plan assets (1,692,287)  (1,603,466)  (1,395,546)  (1,255,541)  (1,227,074)
Deficit in the plan 651,744 450,622 465,440 402,833 276,069

Remeasurement recognised
in other comprehensive

income or loss
(Gain) / loss on obligation 143,881 593 69,122 99,724 21,542

(Loss) / gain on plan assets 20,749 94,574 63,174 8,396 (9,591)
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22.9

22.10

22.11

Gratuity fund - Non-management

Present value of defined
benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Deficit in the plan

Remeasurement recognised
in other comprehensive

income or loss

(Gain) / loss on obligation

(Loss) / gain on plan assets
Gratuity fund - management

Present value of defined
benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Defecit / (surplus) in the plan

Remeasurement recognised
in other comprehensive

income or loss

Loss / (gain) on obligation

Gain / (loss) on plan assets

The weighted average duration of the plans are as follows:

Pension fund

Gratuity fund - Non-management

Medical fund

Gratuity fund - Management

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
< (Rupees in thousand) >
263,836 255,590 216,976 251,855 231,180
(172,746) (171,234) (158,288) (160,380) (145,194)
91,090 84,356 58,688 91,475 85,986
(4,202) 32,722 (39,552) 6,067 19,663
5,114 7,817 3,892 2,070 (2,594)
126,488 131,562 101,071 98,251 79,947
(126,097) (118,828) (108,807) (103,865) (102,356)
391 12,734 (7,736) (5,614) (22,409)
(34,885) 9,201 (16,687) 1,793 (1,822)
187 5,554 3,342 (7) (1,238)
No. of years
8.51
4.81
10.48
10.37

The Company's contributions toward the provident fund for the year ended June 30, 2025

amounted to Rs. 54.11 million (2024: Rs. 54.49 million).

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of
Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

National Refinery Limited - Annual Report 2025

111



NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note 2025 2024

(Rupees in thousand)

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors 19,911,748 18,016,858
Due to Government of Pakistan 23.1 1,172,976 2,017,015
Due to related parties:
- Attock Petroleum Limited 9,387 6,828
- Attock Oil Company Limited _ 329
- Pakistan Oilfields Limited 45,844 -
Accrued liabilities 1,095,039 1,122,496
Gas Infrastructure and Development Cess 23.2 967,384 966,401
HSD Euro-V Differential 23.3 427,487 2,621,249
PMG-RON differential 23.4 253,460 _
PMG-Euro-V differential 25,716 25,695
Sales tax payable 2,358,472 154,910
Retention money 30,486 77,174
Deposits from contractors 23.5 71,400 57,828
Workers' Welfare Fund 65,331 83,016
Income tax deducted at source 33,752 2,862
Excise duty and petroleum levy 9,659,339 3,844,958
Others 23,150 7,185
36,150,971 29,004,804
23.1 This includes Rs. 1,137 million (2024: Rs. 1,676.18 million) in respect of discount and windfall
payable on purchase of local crude oil and condensate. This has been computed in accordance
with Crude Oil Sale / Purchase Agreement (COSA).
23.2 Following is the carrying amount of provision for gas infrastructure development cess and the
movement during the year:
2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
Balance at the beginning of the year 966,401 934,130
Recognised during the year - unwinding 983 32,271
Balance at the end of the year 967,384 966,401
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23.3

23.4

235

24.

25.

The Supreme Court of Pakistan through its judgement dated August 13, 2020 had decided the
Appeal against consumers upholding the vires of GIDC Act, 2015. The Review Petition was also
dismissed on merits; however, the Honorable Court had provided some relief by increasing the
time period for recovery of GIDC from 24 to 48 installments.

The Company also filed a civil suit before the Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) on the ground
that the Company falls under the category of consumers and it has not passed on the burden of
Cess. Accordingly, stay order was granted. However, while pendency of aforesaid suit, the
Company kept on paying GIDC installments under protest and without prejudice to the
Company’s legal rights till August 2021 (upto 13th installment). In September 2021, Sui
Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC) revised the payment terms from 48 to 24 months. The
Company, after giving notice to SSGC stopped payment of further installments of GIDC as the
stay order has been operative, whereby SHC has restrained SSGC from taking any coercive
action against the Company in relation to non-payment of installments of GIDC arrears. The suit
is still pending adjudication before the SHC and interim order, granting a stay, continues and is
in effect till further orders.

This represents differential of Euro V vs Euro | / 11 / lll HSD on account of sale of Euro | /11 / llI
HSD by the Company. The differential has been worked out using criteria provided by Ministry
of Energy through letter dated February 26, 2013, and November 17, 2020.

This represents a differential payable as per the defined formula in the notification
PL-9 (544)/2015 dated September 5, 2016 issued by the Ministry of Petroleum & Natural
Resources which requires the Oil Marketing Companies to import Premium Motor Gasoline
(PMG) of 92 Research Octane Number (RON). However, under such notification, refineries are
allowed to produce PMG of less than 92 RON and account for the differential. The amount is
paid as per the directives of the Regulator.

These represent amount received from contractors of the Company as a security deposit with
reference to the contracts. Such amounts are kept in a separate bank account and are non-
interest bearing.

UNPAID DIVIDEND

This represents dividend withheld due to non-compliance of certain legal / regulatory
requirements by the shareholders.

ACCRUED MARK-UP

Accrued mark-up comprises of mark-up on borrowings.
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26.

26.1

26.2

27.

27.1

27.2

Note 2025 2024
PROVISIONS (Rupees in thousand)

Duties and taxes 26.1 29,006 29,006
Others - note 26.2 83,355 83,355
112,361 112,361

These represent provision made by the Company in respect of sales tax and central excise duty
aggregating to Rs. 29.01 million (2024: Rs. 29.01 million), determined by the Collectorate of
Customs, Sales Tax and Central Excise (Adjudication) in 2004 in respect of goods sold by the
Company to one of its customers without deduction of sales tax and central excise duties.

These include Rs. 55.62 million (2024: Rs. 55.62 million) in respect of sales tax and excise duty
on account of purchases of crude oil and drums.

2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
BORROWINGS

Conventional

Running finance under mark-up
arrangements - note 27.1 23,779,806 9,577,898
Short term loans - note 27.2 1,209,700 26,000,000

Islamic

Financing under Islamic arrangement - note 27.3 20,749,963 17,200,000
45,739,469 52,777,898

The facilities for running finance under mark-up arrangements with various banks amounted to
Rs. 30.29 billion (2024: Rs. 48 billion) of which the amount remaining unutilised at the year end
was Rs. 12.46 billion (2024: Rs. 13.64 billion). The rates of mark-up applicable on running
finance ranges from one / three months KIBOR + 0.04% to 1% (2024: one / three months KIBOR
+0.04% to 1%) per annum.

These represent short term loans obtained on rollover basis from commercial banks amounted
to Rs. 1.21 billion (2024: Rs. 26 billion). These loans are interchangeable facilities with running
finance arrangement as disclosed in note 27.1. The rate of mark-up applicable on these loans is
based on relevant tenor KIBOR -4.9% to +0.8% (2024: relevant tenor KIBOR + 0% to 0.15%) per
annum.
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27.3

27.4

27.5

27.6

28.

28.1

28.1.1

28.1.2

28.2

28.2.1

The facilities from Istisna, Musharakah and Tijarah arrangement from various Islamic banks
amounted to Rs. 23.90 billion (2024: Rs. 17.90 billion) of which Rs. 3.1 billion (2024: Rs. 0.7
billion) remained unutilised as at the year end. The rate of mark-up applicable is based on one
/ three months KIBOR -0.5% to +0.5% (2024: one / three months KIBOR + 0.05% to 0.25%) per
annum.

The facility for local bill discounting amounted to Rs. 4 billion (2024: Rs. 10 billion) of which the
amount remaining unutilized at the year end was Rs. 4 billion (2024: Rs. 10 billion). The
rate of mark-up applicable on this facility is based on relevant tenor KIBOR + 0.15%
(June 2024: relevant tenor KIBOR + 0.04% to 0.15% per annum).

The facilities for opening the letters of credit and guarantees as at June 30, 2025 amounted to
Rs. 116.01 billion (2024: Rs. 125.57 billion) of which the amount remaining unutilised at year
end was Rs. 26.22 billion (2024: Rs. 64.66 billion). The above financing arrangements to the
tune of Rs. 47.90 billion (2024: Rs. 45.40 billion) are interchangeable of these non-funded limits.

These facilities are secured against ranking charge on the Company’s stocks, receivables and
stores, spares and chemicals.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

Claims not acknowledged as debt

Claims not acknowledged by the Company as debt at the end of the year amounted to
Rs. 5.58 billion (2024: Rs. 5.36 billion). These include claims accumulating to Rs. 5.54 billion
(2024: Rs. 5.32 billion) in respect of late payment surcharge claimed by crude oil suppliers.

The Company has raised claims on certain Oil Marketing Companies (OMCs) in respect of
interest on late payments against receivables aggregating to Rs. 5.07 billion
(2024: Rs. 5.07 billion). However, these have not been recognised in the financial statements
as these claims have not been acknowledged by the OMCs.

Commitments

Commitments outstanding for capital expenditures as at June 30, 2025 amounted to
Rs. 871.18 million (2024: Rs. 1,442.64 million).
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2025

2024

(Rupees in thousand)

29. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
Local 366,651,125 372,993,571
Exports 41,423,458 23,934,175
408,074,583 396,927,746
29.1 During the year, the amount recognised as revenue from contract liabilities balance at the
beginning of the year amounts to Rs. Nil (2024: Rs. 915.32 million).
2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
30. TRADE DISCOUNTS, TAXES, DUTIES, LEVIES
AND PRICE DIFFERENTIALS
Sales tax 14,212,360 15,769,220
Further tax 24,098 14,624
Excise duty 259 83
Petroleum levy 75,345,867 58,704,600
Trade discounts 1,151,017 682,061
HSD Euro V differential - note 23.3 1,891,135 4,458,216
PMG - RON differential - note 23.4 253,480 -
PMG - Euro V differential - 25,715
Custom duty - note 15.5 7,533,514 8,431,399
100,411,730 88,085,918
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2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
31. COST OF SALES
Opening stock of semi-finished products 9,435,346 10,556,874
Crude oil, condensate and drums consumed - note 31.1 280,326,916 306,610,979
Stores, spares and chemicals consumed 4,570,043 3,742,262
Salaries, wages and staff benefits - note 31.2 1,419,432 1,453,368
Staff transport and canteen 138,815 144,747
Fuel, power and water 7,268,921 5,677,605
Rent, rates and taxes 29,245 25,052
Insurance 970,594 969,848
Contract services 90,878 134,643
Repairs and maintenance 276,498 527,436
Reversal of provision for net realisable value of slow
moving and obsolete stores, spares and chemicals (7,943) (11,903)
Reversal of provision for Major spare parts
and stand-by equipment (2,170) (3,750)
Stores, spares and chemicals written off - 6,747
Depreciation - note 4.1.8 3,459,352 3,424,135
Amortisation of intangible assets - note 5.3 1,394 2,892
Professional charges 20,960 14,359
Consultancy charges 29,952 29,271
Security charges 22,633 21,702
Others 95,101 37,217
298,710,621 322,806,610
Closing stock of semi-finished products - note 11 (8,413,551) (9,435,346)
Cost of products manufactured 299,732,416 323,928,138
Opening stock of finished products 21,890,887 14,572,574
Closing stock of finished products - note 11 (7,726,219) (21,890,887)
14,164,668 (7,318,313)
313,897,084 316,609,825
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2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)

31.1 Crude oil, condensate and drums consumed

Crude oil and condensate
- Opening stock 18,393,630 23,007,454
- Purchases 274,928,576 300,808,809
- Closing stock - note 11 (13,301,872) (18,393,630)
280,020,334 305,422,633
Drums 306,582 1,188,346
280,326,916 306,610,979

31.1.1 Certain crude oil and condensate purchases have been recorded based on provisional prices
due to non-finalisation of COSA and may require adjustment in subsequent periods.

During the year, the Company has recorded a reversal amounting to Rs. 326.78 million
(2024: Rs. 69.60 million) based on the price differential claims.

31.2 This include Rs. 45.71 million (2024: Rs. 78.28 million) and Rs. 32.61 million
(2024: Rs. 32.69 million) in respect of defined benefit and defined contribution plans
respectively.

2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)

32. DISTRIBUTION COST
Commission on local sales - 203,210
Export expenses 720,478 302,938
Salaries and staff benefits - note 32.1 83,247 90,129
Depreciation - note 4.1.8 1,302 3,421
Security charges 33,950 31,486
Storage Charges 24,041 -
Repairs and maintenance 6,815 180
Pipeline charges 4,966 3,660
Postage and periodicals 6,286 5,899
Staff transport and canteen 7,468 6,844
Others 2,459 1,492

891,012 649,259

32.1 This include Rs. 3.28 million (2024: Rs. 6.76 million) and Rs. 2.73 million
(2024: Rs. 2.73 million) in respect of defined benefit and defined contribution plans
respectively.
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33.

Skl

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and staff benefits - note 33.1
Staff transport and canteen
Directors' fee

Rent, rates and taxes

Depreciation - note 4.1.8
Amortisation of intangible assets - note 5.3
Legal and professional charges
Printing and stationery

Contract services

Repairs and maintenance
Telecommunication

Electricity and power

Insurance

Travelling expenses

Postage and periodicals

Security charges

Others

These include Rs. 18.95 million (2024: Rs.

2025

2024

(Rupees in thousand)

19.63 million)

638,300 620,084
52,668 52,834
22,973 22,339
10,961 14,866
50,138 57,991

87 221
27,366 27,809
9,414 12,882
37,977 69,333
131,758 159,798
4,123 4,826
8,108 7,649
2,721 3,004
5,751 6,694
15,956 12,185
56,806 59,055
42,494 48,996
1,117,601 1,180,566
and Rs. 18.77 million

(2024: Rs. 19.07 million) in respect of defined benefit and defined contribution plans

respectively.
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34. OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets

Return / interest / mark-up on:

- PLS savings and deposit accounts - note 34.1 193,239 188,270
- Return of Pakistan Investment Bonds - note 34.2 116,133 40,110
- Return of Treasury Bills - note 34.3 43,028 -
- Secured loans to employees - note 7.1 79 127
352,479 228,507
Others
Handling and storage income 36,138 39,202
Hospitality income 90,709 43,749
Sale of scrap and empties 58,911 3,492
Pipeline charges recovered 6,507 1,328
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,122 15,360
Rental income 13,411 12,256
Insurance rebate 497 571
Others 1,378 2,933
562,152 347,398
34.1 This profit is earned from bank accounts under mark up arrangements maintained with
conventional banks.
34.2 This represents return earned by the Company on investment in Pakistan Investment Bonds

2025

2024

(Rupees in thousand)

(P1Bs) amounting to Rs. 91.44 billion (2024: Rs. 14.75 billion) carrying interest rate ranging from

11.06% to 20.75%.

34.3 This represents return earned by the Company on invesment in Treasury Bills amounting to

Rs. 12.67 billion (2024: Rs. Nil) carrying interest rate ranging from 12.06% to 19.5%.

35. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' Welfare Fund
Property, plant and equipment written off
Auditors’ remuneration - note 35.1

Corporate Social Responsibility

2025

2024

(Rupees in thousand)

268 19,393
210 57,367
15,219 18,124
100 586
15,797 95,470
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35.1

36.

36.1

37.

37.1

2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)

Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fee 3,800 3,685
Taxation services 6,708 9,590

Fee for review of half yearly financial information,
special reports and certifications 2,616 2,989
Out-of-pocket expenses 2,095 1,860
15,219 18,124

FINANCE COST - NET

Exchange loss - note 36.1 1,990,545 148,771
Mark-up on Conventional Financing 5,743,893 5,892,569
Mark-up on Islamic Financing 2,569,137 3,231,791
Guarantee commission and service charges 879 883
Interest on lease liability 19,539 23,724
Bank charges 7,174 12,315

10,331,167 9,310,053

This is net of exchange gain on export sales amounting to Rs. 44.16 million
(2024: Rs. 29.24 million).

2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
LEVIES
Minimum tax u/s 154 414,235 -
Final tax u/s 154 - 224,418
414,235 224,418

These represent minimum tax / final tax under section 154 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
representing levies in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/IAS 37. As per Finance Act 2024, export
sales has ceased to fall under Final Tax Regime, instead are now subject to Minimum tax
regime.
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2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
38. TAXATION
Current
for the year 1,365,910 1,425,048
for prior years 11,634 (495,590)
Deferred (4,952,513) (4,019,608)
(3,574,969) (3,090,150)
38.2 Reconciliation of income tax expense for the year
Accounting loss before income tax and levies (18,027,656) (18,655,947)
Applicable normal tax rate 29% 29%
Tax calculated at the applicable tax rate (5,228,020) (5,410,225)
Tax effect of :
- income chargeable to tax under FTR basis - 750,997
- prior year tax charge 11,634 (495,590)
- reversal of prior years deferred tax 1,872,326 2,221,216
- Others 183,326 67,870
Levies and taxation - notes 37 & 38 (3,160,734) (2,865,732)
2025 2024
39. EARNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diluted
Loss after taxation (Rupees in thousand) (14,866,922) (15,790,215)
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue (in thousand) 79,967 79,967
Basic and diluted loss per share (Rupees) (185.91) (197.46)
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue as at June 30, 2025 and 2024.
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Note 2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
40. CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATIONS
Loss before taxation and levies (18,027,656) (18,655,947)
Adjustment for non cash charges and other items:
Depreciation 31&32&33 3,510,792 3,485,547
Amortisation 31&33 1,481 3,113
Mark-up on Conventional Financing 36 5,743,893 5,892,569
Mark-up on Islamic Financing 36 2,569,137 3,231,791
Interest on Lease liability 36 19,539 23,724
Provision for staff retirement benefit funds 22.4.4 67,936 104,679
(Gain) / loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 34 (2,122) (15,360)
Property, plant and equipment written off 35 210 57,367
Reversal of provision for impairment of
major spare parts and stand-by equipment 31 (7,943) (15,653)
Return on PLS savings and deposit accounts 34 (193,239) (188,270)
Return of Treasury Bills 34 (43,028) -
Change in working capital 40.1 9,720,206 2,227,899
3,359,206 (3,848,541)
40.1 Change in working capital
Decrease / (increase) in current assets
Stores, spares and chemicals (226,845) 799,433
Stock-in-trade 20,278,221 (1,582,961)
Trade receivables (7,904,126) 13,059,298
Loans and advances (11,559) (10,043)
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 21,147 42,897
Other receivables (9,582,799) (1,466,311)
2,574,039 10,842,313
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 7,146,167 (7,699,097)
Contract liabilities - (915,317)
7,146,167 (8,614,414)
9,720,206 2,227,899
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2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)

41. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances - note 17 679,940 564,360
Running finance under mark-up arrangement
- note 27.1 (23,779,806) (9,577,898)

(23,099,866) (9,013,538)

41.1 Short term borrowings other than running finance have been reclassified as financing activities
in the statement of cash flows which was previously included as cash and cash equivalents
therein.

42. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2025 2024
Chief Executive Executives Chief Executive Executives
Executive Director Executive Director
< (Rupees in thousand) >

Managerial remuneration 42,210 - 243,319 17,068 - 205,686
Bonus - - 39,984 3,647 - 38,127
Retirement benefits - - 25,411 3,413 - 38,281
House rent 2,110 - 77,993 6,265 - 64,560
Conveyance 271 - 25,414 811 - 25,117
Leave benefits 1,261 - 18,570 2,692 - 15,516

45,852 - 430,691 33,896 - 387,287
Number of person(s) 1 - 88 1 - 81
Following the resignation of Mr. Jamil A. Khan as Chief Executive Officer effective July 13, 2024,
Mr. Shahid Waheed Khawja was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company; who
served in this capacity until December 1, 2024. Thereafter, Mr. Asad Hassan has been appointed
as Chief Executive Officer of the Company since December 2, 2024.
Besides, fee paid to one executive and seven non-executive / independent directors
during the year amounted to Rs. 2.5 million (2024: Rs. 3 million) and Rs. 20.44 million
(2024: Rs. 19.34 million) respectively.

42.1 The Chairman, Chief Executive and some of the executives of the Company are provided with
free use of the Company's cars and additionally, the Chief Executive and executives are also
entitled to medical benefits, travelling allowance, club membership and subscriptions in
accordance with their terms of service.
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: capital risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk). The Company’s overall risk
management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.
Risk Management framework
The Company’s overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance. The Board of
Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s
risk management policies.
43.1 Financial assets and liabilities
2025
Interest/mark-up bearing Non-interest/mark-up bearing
Maturity Maturity Sub total Maturity Maturity Sub total Total
up to one after one up to one after one
year year year year
< (Rupees in thousand) >
Financial assets
Fair value through OCI
Long-term investment = = E = 14,123 14,123 14,123
Amortised Cost
Loans and advances 607 1,197 1,804 20,276 11,394 31,670 33,474
Deposits - 5 - 12,299 30,265 42,564 42,564
Trade receivables = 5 - 17,759,495 - 17,759,495 17,759,495
Interest accrued - - - 35,858 - 35,858 35,858
Other receivables - - - 4,871,393 - 4,871,393 4,871,393
Short-term investments 173,607 - 173,607 - - - 173,607
Cash and bank
balances 369,535 5 369,535 310,405 - 310,405 679,940
2025 543,749 1,197 544,946 23,009,726 55,782 23,065,508 23,610,454
Financial liabilities
Long-term borrowing 3,750,000 11,250,000 15,000,000 - = - 15,000,000
Trade and other
payables - - - 21,947,287 - 21,947,287 21,947,287
Unclaimed dividend - - - 58,877 - 58,877 58,877
Unpaid dividend g 5 2 42,852 2 42,852 42,852
Accrued mark-up - - - 1,187,569 - 1,187,569 1,187,569
Borrowings 45,739,469 5 45,739,469 5 = s 45,739,469
Lease liability 18,270 125,646 143,916 5 2 - 143,916
2025 49,507,739 11,375,646 60,883,385 23,236,585 = 23,236,585 84,119,970
On balance sheet gap
2025 (48,963,990)  (11,374,449)  (60,338,439) (226,859) 55,782 (171,077)  (60,509,516)
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2024
Interest/mark-up bearing Non-interest/mark-up bearing
Maturity Maturity Sub total Maturity Maturity Sub total Total
up to one after one up to one after one
year year year year
< (Rupees in thousand) >
Financial assets
Fair value through OCI
Long-term investment - - - - 14,822 14,822 14,822
Amortised Cost
Loans and advances 891 2,529 3,420 18,966 17,751 36,717 40,137
Deposits - - - 12,399 30,265 42,664 42,664
Trade receivables - - - 9,855,369 - 9,855,369 9,855,369
Accrued interest - - - 68,179 - 68,179 68,179
Other receivables - - - 78,118 - 78,118 78,118
Cash and bank
balances 505,434 = 505,434 58,926 5 58,926 564,360
2024 506,325 2,529 508,854 10,091,957 62,838 10,154,795 10,663,649
Financial liabilities
Amortised Cost
Trade and other
payables E - 3 20,051,120 - 20,051,120 20,051,120
Unclaimed dividend - - - 59,128 - 59,128 59,128
Unpaid dividend - - - 43,658 - 43,658 43,658
Accrued mark-up - - - 1,251,885 - 1,251,885 1,251,885
Borrowings 52,777,898 - 52,777,898 - - - 52,777,898
Lease liability 14,422 143,916 158,338 - - - 158,338
2024 52,792,320 143,916 52,936,236 21,405,791 - 21,405,791 74,342,027
On balance sheet gap
2024 (52,285,995) (141,387)  (52,427,382)  (11,313,834) 62,838 (11,250,996)  (63,678,378)
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Commitments for
capital expenditure 871,180
Letters of credit 41,453,597
Letters of guarantees 523,705
2025 42,848,482
2024 _ 16,954,629
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43.2

(i)

(ii)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Capital Risk Management

The objective of the Company is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor,
creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of
Directors monitors the return on capital and the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders. There
was no change to the Company’s approach to the capital management during the year.

The Company was subject to pricing formula whereby profits after tax from refinery operations in
excess of 50% of the paid up capital as of July 1, 2002 were transferred to special reserve and could
only be utilized to offset against any future losses or to make investment for expansion or
upgradation and were therefore not available for distribution. Under the new notified policy
named “Pakistan Oil Refining Policy for up-gradation of Existing/Brownfield Refineries, 2023”, this
requirement is no longer required from August 17, 2023 onwards.

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working
capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to
minimize risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if
counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The financial assets that are subject to credit risk
amounted to Rs. 23.42 billion (2024: Rs. 10.65 billion).

The Company monitors its exposure to credit risk on an ongoing basis at various levels. The
Company believes that it is not exposed to any major concentration of credit risk as it operates in
an essential products industry and has as customers only sound organisations. Further, the cash
and bank balances represent low credit risk as all balances are placed with banks having credit
ratings of AA or above as assigned by PACRA or JCR-VIS.

The carrying values of financial assets which are neither past due nor impaired are as under:

2025 2024

(Rupees in thousand)
Long-term investment 14,123 14,822
Loans and advances 33,474 40,137
Deposits 42,564 42,664
Trade receivables 17,759,495 9,855,369
Interest accrued 35,858 68,179
Other receivables 4,871,393 78,118
Short-term investments 173,607 -
Cash and bank balances 679,940 564,360

23,610,454 10,663,649
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(iii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk reflects the Company's inability in raising funds to meet commitments.
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and the

availability of financing through banking arrangements. The following are contractual maturities of
financial liabilities including mark-up payments:

2025
; . Six to
Carrying Contractual Six months One to More than
twelve ) .
amount cash flows or less five years five years
months

(Rupees in thousand)

A
v

Financial liabilities

Long-term borrowing 15,000,000 (15,000,000) - (3,750,000) (11,250,000)
Trade and other
payables 19,966,979 (19,966,979) (19,966,979)
Unclaimed dividend 58,877 (58,877) (58,877)
Unpaid dividend 42,852 (42,852) (42,852)
Accrued mark-up 1,187,569 (1,187,569) (1,187,569)
Borrowings 45,739,469 (45,739,469) (45,739,469)
Lease liability 143,916 (212,287) 2 (38,418) (134,049) (39,820)
82,139,662 (82,208,033) (66,995,746) (3,788,418) (11,384,049) (39,820)
2024
. . Six to
Carrying Contractual Six months One to More than
twelve ) .
amount cash flows or less five years five years
months

(Rupees in thousand)

A
v

Financial liabilities

Trade and other

payables 18,024,015 (18,024,015) (18,024,015) - - -
Unclaimed dividend 59,128 (59,128) (59,128) - 3 5
Unpaid dividend 43,658 (43,658) (43,658) - -
Accrued mark-up 1,251,885 (1,251,885) (1,251,885) - - -
Borrowings 52,777,898 (52,777,898) (52,777,898) - - -
Lease liability 158,338 (248,876) - (36,589) (172,467) (39,820)
72,314,922 (72,405,460) (72,156,584) (36,589) (172,467) (39,820)
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(iii)

(a)

(c)

Market risk

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises mainly when receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign
currencies primarily with respect to US Dollar. Foreign currency risk arises mainly from future
commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign
currencies. Financial assets include Rs. 1.44 billion (2024: Rs. 0.73 billion) and financial liabilities
include Rs. 15.08 billion (2024: Rs. 12.3 billion) which are subject to foreign currency risk.

As at June 30, 2025, if the Pak Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar with
all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower / higher
by Rs. 1.36 billion (2024: Rs. 1.3 billion), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses / gains on
translation of US Dollar-denominated trade payables and trade debts.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the
market interest rates. The Company is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on its conventional and
Islamic financing facility which is priced ranging from -0.5% to 1% above respective / agreed tenor
KIBOR.

As at June 30, 2025, the Company has variable interest bearing financial liabilities of Rs. 60.19 billion
(2024: Rs. 52.27 billion), and had the interest rate varied by 1% with all the other variables held
constant, profit before income tax for the year would have been approximately Rs. 601.90 million
(2024: Rs. 522.69 million) higher / lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower mark-up expense on
floating rate borrowings.

Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company is not exposed to any material price risk.
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44

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosure require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can
arise between the carrying value and fair value estimates.

The management engage independent external experts / valuers to carry out valuation of its non-
financial assets (i.e. Leasehold land) and financial assets where prices are not quoted or readily
available in the market. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon by management. Selection
criteria include market knowledge, relevant experience, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses valuation techniques that
are appropriate in the circumstances and uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are
categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:

- Level 1

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets/liabilities.

- Level 2

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

- Level 3

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs).

Fair values of financial assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices. For
all other financial instruments the Company determines fair values using valuation techniques.

Valuation techniques used by the Company include discounted cash flow model for valuation of
unquoted equity securities. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free
rates, bond and equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity and equity index prices. The
objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value that reflects the price of the financial
instrument at the reporting date that would have been determined by market participants acting at
arm’s length.
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44.1

44.1.1

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring
basis, the management recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred. There were no transfers between different
levels of fair values mentioned above.

Management assessed that the fair values of loans and advances, trade receivables, other receivables
trade deposits, short-term investments interest accrued, cash and bank balances, trade and other
payables, borrowings, mark-up accrued on borrowings, lease liability, unpaid and unclaimed dividend
and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments. For long term deposits and long term loan and other non-current
liabilities, management consider that their carrying values approximates fair value.

Measurement of Fair Values
Fair value of leasehold land

Fair value of land has been determined using sales comparison approach which falls under level 2 fair
value hierarchy as it relies on inputs other than quoted prices for identical assets.

The valuation approach involves the use of selling prices of comparable land in close proximity which
are then adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant input into
this valuation approach is price per square foot and a slight change in the estimated price per square
foot of the land would result in a significant change in the fair value of the leasehold land.

44.1.2 Fair value of long term investment

Fair value of long term investment has been determined using discounted cashflow technique which
falls under level 3 fair value hierarchy as at June 30, 2025.

The valuation model considers the present value of future cash flow of Anoud Power Generation
Limited (the investee Company) discounted using a risk-adjusted discount rate which is taken at 16.8%.
The cash flow projection include specific estimates for the entire life of the investee Company which is
estimated to be 5 years from the balance sheet date.
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44.2

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

44.2.1 Fair value of long term investment

The unobservable input in valuation approach is risk adjusted discount rate which has been calculated
taking into account risk premium, market premium and beta. The range of input has been taken as
15.8% to 17.8%. An increase of 1% in the risk adjusted discount rate would result in decrease in fair
value by Rs. 2.15 million and a decrease of 1% in the risk adjusted discount rate would result in increase
in fair value by Rs. 2.31 million as at 30 June 2025.

45, OPERATING SEGMENTS
These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment. Revenue
from external customers for products of the Company are as follows:
2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
High Speed Diesel (HSD) 204,955,179 200,599,926
Motor Gasoline (MOGAS) / PMG
(Premium Motor Gasoline) 64,312,920 69,005,885
Lube Base Qils 45,604,739 41,740,374
Furnace Oil 37,836,154 35,595,199
Bitumen 15,710,184 15,611,448
Others 39,655,407 34,374,914
Less: Taxes, duties, levies, discount
and price differential (100,411,730) (88,085,918)
Net revenue from contracts with customers 307,662,853 308,841,828
Revenue from four major customers of the Company constitute 60% (2024: 70%) of total revenue
during the year.
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46.

46.1

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The following transactions were carried out with related parties during the year:

Nature of relationship

Associated companies

Nature of transactions

- Pakistan Qilfields Limited (POL)

2025

2024

(Rupees in thousand)

Rental income 4,686 4,288
Products - sale of petroleum products 424,705 194,659
Reimbursement of expenses
incurred by POL on behalf of NRL 45,844 70
Reimbursement of expenses
incurred by NRL on behalf of POL 519 337
- Attock Refinery Limited (ARL)
Reimbursement of expenses
incurred by NRL on behalf of ARL 313 1,623
Reimbursement of expenses
incurred by ARL on behalf of NRL 539 -
Naphtha handling income 19,406 34,257
- Attock Petroleum Limited (APL)
Sale of petroleum products 145,206,122 155,501,115
Trade discounts 537,178 329,414
Commission on local sales - 229,627
Purchase of petroleum products 45,874 36,732
Hospitality charges on sales 59,063 39,223
Price differential claims - (HSD) 163,162 -
Handling charge on local sales 14,217 -
Rental income 6,761 6,158
Reimbursement of expenses
incurred by NRL on behalf of APL 10,900 24,838
Reimbursement of expenses
incurred by APL on behalf of NRL - 385
- Attock Cement Pakistan Limited (ACPL)
Sale of products 8,869 175
Reimbursement of expenses
incurred by ACPL on behalf of NRL 411 714
Reimbursement of expenses
incurred by NRL on behalf of ACPL 612 426
Purchase of stores 261 1,673
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Nature of relationship Nature of transactions 2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
Associated companies

- Attock Oil Company Limited (AOCL) *

Reimbursement of expenses

incurred by AOCL on behalf of NRL 3,848 831
Reimbursement of expenses
incurred by NRL on behalf of AOCL 38 37

Other related parties

- Contribution to staff retirement benefits plans
Employees provident fund 54,106 54,490
Employees gratuity fund - 12,423
Employees pension fund = =

Post retirement medical fund - 8,283

- Key management compensation **

Salaries and other employee

benefits 85,646 58,777
Post employment benefits 2,534 6,171
Directors' fee 22,973 22,339

* The Company is incorporated in United Kingdom with registered address 24, Chapman Road,
Croydon, CRO 3NU.

** Key management personnel include Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit and General Manager Commercial.

46.1.1 Sales of petroleum products to associated companies are based on prices fixed by the OGRA,
import prices of Pakistan State Oil and Company announced prices.

46.2 The related party status of outstanding balances as at June 30, 2025 is included in trade
receivables, other receivables and trade and other payables. These are settled in the ordinary
course of business.
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46.3 Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or has
arrangement / agreement in place:

S.No. Company name Basis of Aggregate % of
association Shareholding
1. Attock Refinery Limited Group Company 25%
2. Pakistan Qilfields Limited Group Company 25%
3. Attock Petroleum Limited Group Company 1%
4, Attock Cement Pakistan Limited Group Company N/A
5. Attock Oil Company Limited Group Company N/A
Note 2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
47. SHARIAH COMPLIANCE STATUS DISCLOSURE
Statement of financial position
1. Short term financing as per Islamic mode 27 20,749,963 17,200,000
2. Accrued mark-up on a conventional loan 964,040 1,086,795
3. Longterm and short term investments
that are Shariah compliant - -
4. Bank balances that are Shariah compliant 17 15,279 153
Statement of profit or loss
1. Revenue earned from
Shariah-compliant business segment 29&30 307,662,853 308,841,828
2. Gainor loss or dividend earned on
Shariah compliant investments - -
3.  Profit earned from Shariah
complaint bank balances 34 4,748 1,603
4. Exchange loss on actual currency 36 1,990,545 148,771
5.  Markup paid on Islamic mode of financing 27 2,510,698 167,091
6. Total Interest earned on any
conventional loan or advance 34 79 127
7. Break-up of other income 34
Shariah compliant Income
- Handling and storage income 36,138 39,202
- Hospitality income 90,709 43,749
- Sale of scrap and empties 58,911 3,492
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2025 2024
(Rupees in thousand)
- Pipeline charges recovered 6,507 1,328
- Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 2,122 15,360
- Rental income 13,411 12,256
- Others 1,378 2,933

Non-compliant Income

- PLS savings and deposit accounts 188,491 186,667
- Return of Pakistan Investment Bonds 116,133 40,110
- Return of Treasury Bills 43,028 -

- Insurance rebate 497 571

8. Relationship with Shariah-compliant financial institutions
Islamic banks

The Company has obtained facilities of Istisna and Tijarah amounting to Rs. 12 billion and
Rs.11.90 billion.

Takaful operators
The company has no relationship with takaful operators.

Crude oil - throughput

Annual
. Actual
designed
. throughput
capacity
<«— (In Barrels) —»
48. CAPACITY
2025 - note 48.1 23,100,000 12,820,500
2024 23,100,000 11,848,500

48.1 Actual throughput is less than the designed capacity due to crude price and product margins,
volatility in international market and product demand pattern.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

49. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
2025 2024
Number of employees including contractual
employees at June 30 912 1024
Average number of employees including contractual
employees during the year 968 998

50. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary for the
purpose of comparision and better presentation.

51. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on August 11, 2025 by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

4
q 44—«7)
W_— - Selrtann, —t e

Chief Financial Officer Director Chief Executive
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

AS AT JUNE 30, 2025
FORM 20
Suaurtgl?glz:lzfrs ETOm Shareholdings To Total Shares Held % on Issued
2,825 1 100 109,805 0.14%
2,289 101 500 678,553 0.85%
1,053 501 1000 856,813 1.07%
1,459 1001 5000 3,483,212 4.36%
240 5001 10000 1,778,539 2.22%
210 10001 50000 4,376,477 5.47%
32 50001 100000 2,241,423 2.80%
16 100001 250000 2,602,870 3.26%
10 250001 800000 3,655,158 4.57%
1 1025001 1030000 1,026,652 1.28%
1 2675001 2680000 2,679,337 3.35%
1 4490001 4495000 4,494,441 5.62%
1 11995001 12000000 12,000,000 15.01%
19990001 19995000 39,983,280 50.00%
Categories of Shareholders Perc(z/?tage S”:rgt?gll;lzts 311;12‘!}: ecl)cfi
Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse(s) and minor children. 0.01 % 7 10,007
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties. 51.00 % 3 40,782,945
NIT and ICP. 1.08 % 8 862,510
Banks, Development Financial Institutions and
Non Banking Financial Institutions. 3.59 % 30 2,872,532
Insurance Companies. 1.20% 7 960,485
Modarabas and Mutual Funds. 1.35% 13 1,079,402
Shareholders holding 10%.
- Islamic Development Bank, Jeddah. 15.01 % 1 12,000,000
General Public:
a. Local. 22.23 % 7,964 17,774,798
b. Foreign. 0.02 % 7 12,725
Joint Stock Companies. 0.68 % 25 545,851
Others. 3.83% 75 3,065,305
100.00 8,140 79,966,560
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

Percentage Number of
% Shares held

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, their spouse(s) and minor children

Mr. Laith G. Pharaon 1
Mr. Wael G. Pharaon 1
Mr. Shuaib A. Malik 2
Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan 1
Mr. Abdus Sattar 1
Mr. Babar Bashir Nawaz 1
Mr. Tariq Igbal Khan 10,000

Associated Companies

Attock Refinery Limited 19,991,640
Pakistan Qilfields Limited 19,991,640
Attock Petroleum Limited 799,665

Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest

Attock Refinery Limited 25 19,991,640
Pakistan OQilfields Limited 25 19,991,640
Islamic Development Bank, Jeddah 15 12,000,000

Trade in the shares of the Company carried out by directors, executives, their spouse(s) and minor children

during the year 2024-25:

Executive(s) No. of Shares Traded
(Buy & Sell)

Spouse of Mr. Mustaneer Alam 100
Mr. Muhammad Amin 2,500

The expression “executive” means the CEO, CFO, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary and other employees of
the Company drawing annual basic salary of Rs. 1,200,000 including all employees of Finance Divison,Internal Audit
Function and Company Secretary office.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Sixty Second (62") Annual General Meeting of
National Refinery Limited will be held on Tuesday, September 30, 2025 at 1400 hours in
Marriott Hotel, Karachi, and also through electronic means, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and approve the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended June 30, 2025 together with the Reports of the Board and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint Company’s auditors for the year ending June 30, 2026 and to fix their
remuneration.

OTHER BUSINESS

3. To transact such other business as may be placed before the meeting with the permission
of the Chairman.

By Order of the Board

Ay NS
5 e & /=

Karachi: Badruddin Khan
Dated: September 5, 2025 Company Secretary

The financial statements of the Company can be
accessed through the weblink and QR enabled code:
https://www.nrlpak.com/FinancialReports.aspx
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NOTES:

1. CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOK

The Register of Members will remain closed from September 23, 2025 to
September 30, 2025 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of the
Company’s Share Registrar:

M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S,
Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400.
Telephone (Toll Free) 0800-23275

Email: info@cdcsrsl.com

at the close of business on September 22, 2025 will be treated in time for the purpose of
determination of entitlement to the transferees.

2. PARTICIPATION IN ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

a)

Through Electronic Means:

Shareholders interested to attend the meeting via video link i.e. through
ZOOM application instead of physical presence are requested to get
themselves registered with the company on or before September 29, 2025 at

agm.2025@nrlpak.com by providing the following details:

* k%
Full Name of CNIC/ : i
Shareholder / | Company | Passport FOA'/OC/N%DC Email ID *P*rll\gﬁke)llﬁo
Proxy Holder Number : )
National
Refinery
Limited

*Shareholders shall also share copy of original CNIC or passport.
**Shareholders are requested to provide active email address and mobile phone number.

b) Through In Person:

e An Individual shall authenticate his identity by showing original Computerized
National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport.

* Incase of Corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided
earlier) at the time of the Meeting.
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c) For Appointing Proxies:

e Amember may appoint another person as his proxy to attend, speak and vote instead
of him. A proxy need not be a member.

* Proxy, in order to be effective, must be in writing duly signed, witnessed, stamped
and deposited at the Registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before
the meeting.

¢ In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with
specimen signature shall be submitted along with proxy form to the Company.

e Form of proxy is annexed at the end of annual report as well as available at Company’s
website i.e., www.nrlpak.com.

3. VIDEO-LINK FACILITY

At least seven days prior to the date of meeting, on the demand of members residing in a
city who hold at least ten percent of the total paid up capital of the Company, the facility of
video-link will be provided to such members in that city enabling them to participate in the
Annual General Meeting through video-link facility.

4. PROHIBITION OF DISTRIBUTION OF GIFTS

As directed by SECP through S.R.O. No. 452(1)/2025 of March 17, 2025 and pursuant to the
prohibition under section 185 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is to affirm that no gifts will be
distributed at the Annual General Meeting.

5. MANDATORY REGISTRATION DETAILS

Members whose mandatory registration details under law including usual residential
address, mobile/landline number, Email address, Computerized National Identity Card
Number (CNIC) / Passport number, National Tax Number (NTN), bank account details
(IBAN) etc. are not available in Company’s records have been intimated from time to time
to provide the same.

Such members are hereby once again advised to provide the same to the Company’s
Share Registrar in case of physical shareholding or their relevant Participant / CDC Investor
Account Services (IAS), in case of shareholding in the book entry form, immediately to avoid
any inconvenience in future.

6. UNCLAIMED SHARES / DIVIDEND

Pursuant to Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, the Company has dispatched notices
from time to time, followed by newspaper advertisements, in respect of shares / dividend

National Refinery Limited - Annual Report 2025 145



10.

that remained unclaimed or unpaid to the shareholders at their last known addresses, with
the request to lodge their claims. Lists of shareholders regarding unclaimed dividends and
shares are also available on Company’s website. Accordingly, if such claims are not lodged
within prescribed time period, the Company shall proceed according to the requirements
of the Law.

ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In compliance with section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017, pursuant to the SECP’s
S.R.0. 389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023 and the shareholders’ approval in the 60%
Annual General Meeting held on October 23, 2023 to circulate the annual audited financial
statements to its members through QR enabled code and weblink. Thus, the audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025 can be accessed
through the following QR enabled code and weblink:

B
iy

?E Weblink: https://www.nrlpak.com/FinancialReports.aspx

The Company will, however, provide hard copy of the Annual Audited Financial Statements
to the shareholders at their registered addresses, within seven days, on request, free of
cost. The request form is available on Company’s website.

DEPOSIT OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO CDC ACCOUNT

In light of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, SECP has advised all the listed companies
to pursue their shareholders who still hold shares in physical form, requiring them to
convert their shares in book-entry form. Holding shares in book-entry form has numerous
benefits including secure custody of shares, instantaneous transfer of ownership and no
risk of damaged, lost, forged or duplicate certificates. Accordingly, Shareholders having
physical shareholding are requested to convert their shares in book-entry form by opening
CDC sub-account with any of the brokers or Investor Account directly with CDC to place
their physical shares into script-less form.

MERGER OF DIFFERENT FOLIOS INTO ONE FOLIO

As per record, some of the shareholders are maintaining more than one folio under the
same particulars. Carrying two different folios may be a hassle for the shareholders to
reconcile and receive different benefits in the shape of dividends/bonus. In order to provide
better services and convenience, such shareholders, are requested to send requests to the
Company’s Share Registrar and Transfer agent to merge their folios into one folio.

STATUTORY CODE OF CONDUCT AT AGM

Shareholders are requested to observe the conduct referred in sub-regulation (2) of
regulation 55 of the Companies Regulations, 2024 while attending the AGM.
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FORM OF PROXY

62" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NATIONAL REFINERY LIMITED

I of in the
district of being a Member of NATIONAL REFINERY LIMITED
hereby appoint of as my
proxy, and failing him, of another Member of the

Company to vote for me and on my behalf at the 62" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held

on the 30t day of September 2025 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2025. Signed by the said Member

Signed in the presence of:

1. Signature: 2. Signature:
Name: Name:
Address: Address:
CNIC/Passport No. CNIC/Passport No.
For Memb For Proxy For alternate
. . or Viember Proxy (*)
Information required (Shareholder)
(if member)
Number of shares held Revenue stamp of
Folio No. appropriate value
Partici (To the extent
CDC | aDrt|C|pant applicable)
Account ——
No. Account No.

(*) Upon failing of appointed Proxy.



Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote instead of him / her. A proxy need not be a member.

2. This Proxy Form, duly completed and signed, together with Board Resolution / Power of Attorney, if any,
under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy thereof, should be deposited, at the registered

office of the Company not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

3. Theinstrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member or his / her attorney duly authorized
in writing. If the member is a corporate entity its common seal should be affixed on the instrument.

4. Any alteration made in this instrument of proxy should be initialed by the person who signs it.

5. Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and of the proxy shall be provided with
the proxy form.

6. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxies are deposited by
a member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

7. Inthe case of joint holders the vote of the senior who tenders a vote whether in person or by Proxy will
be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders, and for this purpose seniority will

be determined by the order in which the names stand in the Register of Members.

8. The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or passport at the time of the meeting.

AFFIX
POSTAGE
STAMP

Company Secretary

National Refinery Limited

7-B, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi-74900

UAN: +92-21-111-675-675

PABX: +92-21-35064981-86
+92-21-35064977-79
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AFFIX
POSTAGE
STAMP

Company Secretary

National Refinery Limited

7-B, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi-74900

UAN: +92-21-111-675-675

PABX: +92-21-35064981-86
+92-21-35064977-79




E-DIVIDEND

Members of National Refinery Limited

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, every listed company is required to pay
cash dividend to the shareholders ONLY through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated
by the entitled shareholders.

In compliance with the said requirements, in order to receive your all future dividends, as and when declared,
directly into your Bank Account, you are required to provide the information as contained in the below
mentioned form and send the same to the Company’s Share Registrar, if the shares are held in physical form or
to your brokers / CDC Investor Account Service (IAS) Department, if the shares are held in the electronic form.

To To

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block 'B', S.M.C.H.S.,
Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi — 74400.

E-DIVIDEND FORM

(i) Shareholder's Detail
Name of the shareholder
Folio / CDS A/c No.
CNIC No.
Passport No. (in case of Foreign Shareholder)
Land Line Phone No.
Mobile Phone No.
E-mail Address

(ii) Shareholder’s Bank Detail
Bank's Name
Branch Name and Address
Title of Bank Account
IBAN Number
Full Bank Account Number

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct, and that I will intimate the changes in the
above-mentioned information to the broker / CDC (IAS) / Company’s Share Registrar, as the case may be,
as soon as any change occurs.

Signature of the Member/Shareholder Date:
of National Refinery Limited

Note: g The shareholders who hold shares in physical form are requested to submit duly filled-in, duly signed and

stamped, where applicable, E-Dividend Form to the Share Registrar concerned.

B Shareholders maintaining their shareholdings under Central Depository System (CDS) are advised to submit
this form directly to relevant Participant / CDC (IAS) Department.

B Please attach attested photocopy of the CNIC or Passport (in case of Foreign Shareholder).



CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S.,

Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi — 74400.

Tel: (Toll Free) 0800-23275
Fax: +92-21-34326053
Email: info@cdcsrsl.com
Website: www.cdcsrsl.com

AFFIX
POSTAGE
STAMP










